COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT

BETWEEN:

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BRIDGEPOINT HOSPITAL

Hereinafter called the Employer,

Party of the First Part

AND

THE CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES AND ITS LOCAL 79 (SERVICE FULL-TIME AND PART-TIME UNITS)

Hereinafter called the Union,

Party of the Second Part

Expires September 28, 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1	PREAMBLE	1
ARTICLE 2	RECOGNITION	1
ARTICLE 3	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	1
ARTICLE 4	DEFINITIONS	2
4.01	Temporary Employee	2
4.02	Supervisor	2
4.03	Working Days	
4.04	Shift Worked on a Designated Holiday	
4.05	Definition of a Regular Part-time Employee	
4.06	Definition of a Casual Part-time Employee	3
4.07	Part-time Commitment	
4.08	Definition of Spouse	
ARTICLE 5	RELATIONSHIP	3
5.01	No Discrimination	3
ARTICLE 6	STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS	3
ARTICLE 7	UNION SECURITY	4
7.04	T4.00	
7.01	T4 Slips	
7.02	Notification to Union	
7.03	Employee Interview	
7.04	No Other Agreements	
7.05	Union Security	4
ARTICLE 8	UNION REPRESENTATION AND COMMITTEES	5
8.01	Union Activity on Premises and/or Access to Premises	5
8.02	Labour-Management Committee	5
8.03	Local Bargaining Committee	
8.04	Central Bargaining Committee	
8.05	For Union Business	
8.06	Grievance Committee	
8.07	Stewards	
8.08	Interchangeability of Stewards and Officers	
8.09	Payment for Attending Meetings Outside Scheduled Hours	
8.10	Conditions of Work Committee	
8.11	Joint Professional Committee	
ARTICLE 9	GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE	11
ARTICLE 10	ACCESS TO FILES	14

10.01 10.02	Access to Personnel File	
10.02	Clearing of Record	14
ARTICLE 11	SENIORITY	15
11.01	Probationary Period	15
11.02	Definition of Seniority	
11.03	Loss of Seniority	
11.04	Effect of Absence	17
11.05	Job Posting	17
11.06	Transfer and Seniority Outside of the Bargaining Unit	20
11.07	Notice and Redeployment Committee	21
11.08	Lay-off and Recall	
11.09	Benefits on Lay-off ~ Full-time Employees	
11.10	Technological Change	25
11,11	Re-Training	25
11.12	Separation Allowance	
11.13	Portability of Service	
ADTICLE 40	•	
ARTICLE 12	CONTRACTING OUT/IN	Z/
12.01	Contracting Out	27
12.02	Contracting In	27
ARTICLE 13	WORK OF THE BARGAINING UNIT	28
13.02	Volunteers	28
ARTICLE 14	LEAVES OF ABSENCE	28
14.01	Personal Leave	20
14.01	Union Business	
14.02	Full-time Position with the Union or Full-time Public Office	
14.04	Bereavement	
14.05	Jury & Witness Duty	
14.06	Pregnancy Leave	
14.07	Parental Leave	
14.08	Education Leave	
14.09	Pre-paid Leave Plan	
14.11	Medical Care and Emergency Leave	
14.12	Compassionate Care Leave	
ARTICLE 15	SICK LEAVE, INJURY AND DISABILITY	36
ARTICLE 15 15.01	SICK LEAVE, INJURY AND DISABILITY Amount of Sick Leave	

15.03 15.04	Accumulated Sick Leave Provisions	
15.05	Reporting of Illness (Full-time and Part-time employees)	
15.06	Return to Work After Illness (Full-time and Part-time employees)	
15.07	Payment Pending Determination of WSIB Claims	
15.08	WSIB and Sick Leave Credits	
10.00	VVOID and Gloc Eday's Groation	
ARTICLE 16	HOURS OF WORK	40
16.01	Daily & Weekly Hours of Work (effective January 4, 1999)	
16.02	Rest Periods	
16.03	Additional Rest Periods	
16.04	Scheduling	40
	A)(1) Commitment (Nursing)	
	A)(2) Commitment (Non-Nursing)	
16.07(
16.09	Rest Periods	
16.10	Meal Break	
16.11	Wash Up Time	44
ARTICLE 17	PREMIUM PAYMENT	45
17.01	Definition of Regular Straight Time Rate of Pay	45
17.02	Definition of Overtime	45
17.03	Overtime Premium and No Pyramiding	
17.04	Time Off in Lieu of Overtime	
17.05	Reporting Pay	
17.06	Callback	
17.07	Standby	
17.08	Temporary Transfer	
17.09	Shift Premium	
17.10	Meal Allowance	47
ARTICLE 18	HOLIDAYS	47
18.01(a	ı) Number of Holidays	47
18.01(b) Part-time Employees	47
18.02	Definition of Holiday Pay and Qualifiers	47
18.03	Payment for Working on a Holiday	
18.04	Payment for Working Overtime on a Holiday	
18.09	Holiday and Sick Pay	49
ARTICLE 19	VACATION	49
19.01	Entitlement, Qualifiers & Calculation of Payment	49
19.02	Work During Vacation – Full-time Employees	
19.03	Illness During Vacation – Full-time Employees	
19.13	Entitlement, Qualifiers & Calculation of Payment	
ARTICLE 20	BENEFITS	53
20.01	Insured Renefits	53

20.02	Long Term Disability (LTD)	
20:03	Change of Carrier – Full-time Employees	
20:04	Pension	
	a)(1) Full-time Employees	
20.04(8	a)(2) Part-time Employees	50
ARTICLE 21	HEALTH AND SAFETY	56
21.01	Health and Safety Committee	56
21.02	Protective Footwear	57
21.03	Workloads	
ARTICLE 22	COMPENSATION	58
22.01	Job Classification	58
22.02	Promotion to a Higher Classification	
22.03	Wage Rates	
22.04	Pay Day	
ARTICLE 23	GENERAL	59
23:01	Bulletin Boards	
23:02	Uniforms	
23:06	Disabled Employee's Preference	60
ARTICLE 24	FISCAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE	60
ARTICLE 25	DURATION	61
25:01	Term	61
SCHEDULE "	Α"	i
I FTTER OF II	NDERSTANDING – Billed Premiums	а
LETTER OF U	NDERSTANDING – Scheduling	b
LETTER OF IN	NTENT ~ Variable Work Hours	c
LETTER OF IN	ITENT – Clear Language and Reformatting of the C.A	d
LETTER OF IN	ITENT – Job Postings	e
LETTER OF IN	ITENT – Bridgepoint Hospital Redevelopment	f
LETTER OF IN	ITENT – Workplace Relations Policy	g
LETTER OF IN	ITENT - Process for Holiday Scheduling (RPNs Only)	h
LETTER OF IN	ITENT – Permanent Part-Time Pilot/Job Share Program	i
LETTER OF IN	ITENT – Skill Mix Initiative	i

LETTER OF INTENT – Christmas & New Years Scheduling (RPNs Only)	k
LETTER OF INTENT – Part-time Pilot Project Offering Additional Shifts (FS)	р
LETTER OF INTENT – Re: Local Health Integration Networks	q
LETTER OF INTENT – Re: Clarity and Housekeeping	r
LETTER OF INTENT – RE: Alternate Unit and/or Float Pool (RPNs)	s
LETTER OF INTENT – Part-time Pilot Project – Temporary Vacancies	t
APPENDIX "A" – WORK-LOAD REVIEW FORM	

ARTICLE 1 - PREAMBLE

1.01 Purpose

The general purpose of this Agreement is to establish and maintain collective bargaining relations between the Hospital and the employees covered by this Agreement; to provide for ongoing means of communication between the Union and the Hospital and the prompt disposition of grievances and the final settlement of disputes and to establish and maintain mutually satisfactory wages, hours of work and other conditions of employment in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. The Hospital hereby consents and agrees to negotiate with the Union in any and all matters affecting the relationship between the parties to this Agreement, looking towards a peaceful and amicable settlement of any differences that may arise between them.

It is recognized that the employees wish to work efficiently together with the Hospital to secure the best possible care and health protection for patients.

ARTICLE 2 - RECOGNITION

(a) Full-time Unit:

The Hospital recognizes the Canadian Union of Public Employees, Local 79, as the exclusive collective bargaining agency for all of its employees covered by the classifications set forth in Schedule A, excluding any persons regularly scheduled to work twenty-four (24) hours per week or less, and forming part of this Agreement.

(b) Part-time Unit:

The Hospital recognizes the Canadian Union of Public Employees, Local 79, as the exclusive bargaining agent for all of its employees covered by the certificate and decision issued by the Ontario Labour Relations Board dated March 18, 1994, regularly employed not more than twenty-four (24) hours per week, and students employed during the school vacation period.

(c) In the event that the Employer creates a new classification which, in the opinion of the Union or the Employer, falls within the bargaining unit, the issue of its inclusion or exclusion from the bargaining unit shall be determined by mutual agreement or, in the absence of agreement, as provided for in Article 9 hereof.

All other issues relating to the new classification shall be determined in accordance with Article 22.

ARTICLE 3 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

3.01 Management Rights

The Union recognizes that within the limitations and qualifications contained in this Agreement, it is the exclusive responsibility and right of the management to the Hospital to:

- (a) Direct the operation of the Hospital including the determination of work assignments, procedures, methods and standards and maintain order and discipline.
- (b) Hire, discharge, transfer, promote, discipline and direct the work of employees to attain the required standard of efficiency.

ARTICLE 4 - DEFINITIONS

4.01 Temporary Employee

With the exception of Bargaining Unit Members performing temporary work as per Article 11.05, employees may be hired for a specific term not to exceed twelve (12) months, to replace an employee who will be on approved leave of absence, absence due to W.S.I.B. disability, sick leave, long term disability or to perform a special non-recurring task. This term may be extended a further six (6) months on mutual agreement of the Union and the Hospital. The period of employment of such person will not exceed the absentee's leave. The release or discharge of such persons shall not be the subject of a grievance or arbitration.

This clause would not preclude such employees from using the job posting provision under the Collective Agreement and any successful applicant who has completed her/his probation period will be credited with the appropriate seniority.

The Hospital will outline to employees selected to fill such temporary vacancies and the Union, the circumstances giving rise to the vacancy, and the special conditions relating to such employment.

4.02 Supervisor

Wherever the word "Supervisor" is used in this Agreement, it shall be considered as meaning the first supervisory level excluded from the bargaining unit.

4.03 Working Days

Where used in the Agreement, the term "working days" shall mean Monday to Friday, inclusive (exclusive of statutory holidays). Otherwise, the term "days", "weeks", "months" and "years" shall be in accordance with the calendar designation.

4.04 Shift Worked on a Designated Holiday

Shift work on a designated holiday means a shift where the majority of hours fall within the twenty-four (24) hour period of the holiday.

4.05 Definition of Regular Part-Time Employee

A regular part-time employee is one who is scheduled to work, on a regular predetermined basis, in accordance with Article 16, not more than twenty-four (24) hours per week.

4.06 Definition of Casual Part-time Employee

A casual Part-time Employee is one who is not pre-scheduled, and who is called in to work as needed.

4.07 Part-time Commitment

The Hospital shall not refuse to accept an offer from an employee to make a written commitment to be available for work on a regular pre-determined basis, solely for the purpose of utilizing casual employees so as to restrict the number of regular part-time employees.

4.08 Definition of Spouse

Spouse means a person (including a same sex partner) who, at any particular date, lives with the employee in a relationship and:

to whom the employee is legally married; or,

has so lived throughout the twelve (12) months prior to the particular date.

ARTICLE 5 - RELATIONSHIP

5.01 No Discrimination

The Hospital and the Union recognize and uphold the inherent dignity, worth and rights of each individuals and to promote a harmonious work relationship. The Hospital and the Union agree that there shall be no discrimination, interference, restriction or coercion exercised or practiced, with respect to any employees in the matter of hiring, wage rates, training, upgrading, promotion, transfer, lay-off, recall, discipline, discharge, or otherwise by reason of age, race, creed, colour, national origin, political or religious affiliation, sex, sexual orientation or marital status, place of residence nor by reason of her/his membership in a labour union or any other factor which is not pertinent to the employment relationship.

5.02 The principle of equal pay for equal work shall apply, regardless of sex.

ARTICLE 6 - STRIKES & LOCKOUTS

6.01 The Union agrees there shall be no strikes and the Hospital agrees there shall be no lockouts so long as this Agreement continues to operate. The terms "strike" and "lockout" shall bear the meaning given them in the Ontario Labour Relations Act as amended from time to time.

ARTICLE 7 - UNION SECURITY

7.01 T4 Slips

The Hospital will provide each employee with a T4 Slip showing the dues deducted in the previous year for income tax purposes.

7.02 Notification to Union

The Hospital will provide the Union, including a copy to the Unit Officer, with a list monthly of all hiring, lay-offs, recalls, terminations, and resignations within the bargaining unit.

7.03 Employee Interview

A new employee will have the opportunity to meet with a representative of the Union in the employ of the Hospital for a period of up to thirty (30) minutes during the employee's orientation period without loss of regular earnings. The purpose of the meeting will be to acquaint the employee with such representative of the Union and the Collective Agreement.

Such meetings may be arranged collectively or individually for employees by the Hospital as part of the orientation program.

7.04 No Other Agreements

No employee shall be required or permitted to make a written or verbal agreement with the employer or her/his representative which may conflict with the terms of this Collective Agreement.

No individual employee or group of employees shall undertake to represent the Union at meetings with the Hospital without proper authorization from the Union.

Where the Hospital requires written authorization of an Official Union representative or a signatory on behalf of the Union, the Hospital shall notify the President, Local 79 in advance.

7.05 Union Security

All employees of the Hospital, as a condition of continuing employment, shall become and remain members in good standing of the Union according to the Constitution and By-laws of the Union. All future employees of the Hospital shall, as a condition of continued employment, become members in good standing in the Union not later than after one (1) month of continuous employment with the Hospital.

The Hospital shall not be required to discharge an employee who has been expelled or suspended from membership in the Union, other than for engaging in unlawful activity against the Union.

The Hospital will provide the Union with a quarterly list of all members of the Bargaining Units, in alphabetical order, by classification. Such list shall be sent to the union in the

months of March, June, September and December of each year. The list will include the addresses and telephone numbers of members provided no objection is received. The Hospital will post a notice of Local 79's request to provide members' addresses and telephone numbers two (2) weeks in advance. If a member does not object, the address and telephone number of the member will be included on the list. The Hospital will provide Local 79 with a list of members who raised objection at the same time the list is provided to the Union.

7.06 The Hospital agrees to deduct from every employee any monthly dues or assessments uniformly levied, in accordance with the Union By-laws, and owing by her/him to the Union. Deductions shall be made from each pay and shall be forwarded to the Treasurer of the Union not later than one (1) week from date of deduction, accompanied by a list of all employees from whose wages the deductions have been made.

The Hospital shall provide Local 79 on a biweekly basis, a list of all employees from whose wages union dues have been deducted and, in accordance with the respective pay system report criteria, the union dues amount, the biweekly earnings, classification, hourly rate, and full-time or part-time status.

ARTICLE 8 – UNION REPRESENTATION AND COMMITTEES

8.01 Union Activity on Premises and/or Access to Premises

The Union shall have the right at any time to have the assistance of a National Representative of the Canadian Union of Public Employees when dealing or negotiating with the Hospital. Such representative shall have access to the Hospital's premises in order to investigate or assist in the settlement of a grievance. Prior to this investigation, such Representative, or her/his designate, will be required to notify the Director, Human Resources, or her/his representative, of her/his presence in the Hospital.

The appointment of, and recognition of stewards shall be conditional upon the steward being an employee in the bargaining unit with regular duties to perform. Before leaving her/his regular duties to attend to the investigation of a grievance, a steward will obtain permission from her/his supervisor to do so, and will report back to her/his supervisor when resuming her/his regular duties. Only a reasonable amount of time shall be consumed during working hours for the investigation of a grievance.

When such steward investigates a grievance, in a department other than her/his own, she/he shall first advise the other department head or person in charge prior to the investigation of the grievance. Such steward shall hold her/his conference in a private area other than a duty area.

8.02 Labour-Management Committee

A Labour-Management Committee shall be set up consisting of three (3) full time and two (2) part time bargaining unit members and five (5) representatives of the Hospital. In the event of any change(s) to the members of the Committee, the Union will immediately advise the Hospital of the change(s) and provide the new names. With the mutual agreement of the parties, additional representatives shall be admitted to meetings.

The Committee shall concern itself with matters of the following general nature:

- 1. Increasing operating efficiency by promoting co-operation and positive labour relations.
- 2. Improvement of service to the patients and public.
- 3. Suggestions from employees, questions of working conditions and service (but not grievances concerned with service).
- 4. Correction of conditions making for grievances and misunderstanding.
- 5. Promotion of education and training of the staff.
- 6. And such other matters of mutual concern as the parties deem properly within their jurisdiction.
- 7. It is agreed that the topic of a rehabilitation program for drug and alcohol abuse is an appropriate topic for the Labour-Management Committee.

The Committee shall meet at least once per month at a mutually agreeable time and place. When either party submits agenda items, the other party shall respond with their items, if any. Such agenda and notice of the meeting shall be distributed to members at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of such meeting or with such lesser notice as may be mutually agreed when required. The Committee shall only consider issues on the agenda unless otherwise mutually agreed.

In light of the agreements existing between CUPE and the Hospital, the Committee may be a joint one representing employees under two (2) or more agreements provided a representative from each of the bargaining units is present. The Union will advise the Hospital of the names of its committee.

An employer and a union representative shall be designated as joint chairpersons and shall alternate in presiding over meetings.

Minutes of each meeting of the Committee shall be prepared and signed as promptly as possible after the close of the meeting by the joint chairpersons. The signed copies of the minutes shall be delivered to the Union and the Hospital within three (3) days following the meeting.

The Committee shall not supersede the activities of any other committee of the Union or the Hospital and does not have the power to bind either the Union or its members or the Hospital to any decisions or conclusions reached in their discussions. The Committee shall have the power to make recommendations to the Union and the Hospital with respect to its discussions and conclusions.

Any representative(s) attending such meetings during their regularly scheduled hours of work shall not lose regular earnings as a result of such attendance.

8.03 Local Bargaining Committee

The Hospital agrees to recognize a negotiating committee comprised of hospital employee representatives of the Union for the purpose of negotiating a renewal agreement. The Hospital agrees to pay members of the negotiating committee for straight time wages lost from their regularly scheduled working hours spent in direct negotiations for a renewal agreement, up to but not including arbitration. Nothing in this provision is intended to preclude the Union negotiating committee from having the assistance of any representatives of the Canadian Union of Public Employees when negotiating with the Hospital.

When direct negotiations begin or end within ten (10) hours of a negotiating team member's scheduled shift, the Hospital will endeavour to provide a one-day leave of absence without pay, to provide a sufficient rest break if the employee so requests. Such request shall not be unreasonably denied. Such leave shall be considered leave of absence for union business, but shall not be deducted from the Union entitlement under Article 14.02.

The Union may appoint a Bargaining Committee consisting of not more than seven (7) members, at least one (1) of which shall be from the full-time bargaining unit and one (1) from the part-time bargaining unit. At least two (2) of these seven (7) employees shall be appointed from a department other than a Nursing Service department. The Union will advise the Hospital of the names of its Committee and any change(s) thereafter.

8.04 Central Bargaining Committee

Union Central Bargaining Committee Leave

In future central bargaining between the Canadian Union of Public Employees and the participating hospitals, an employee serving on the Union's Central Negotiating Committee shall be paid for time lost from her/his normal straight time working hours at her/his regular rate of pay and without loss of leave credits for attending central negotiating meetings with the Hospitals' Central Negotiating Committee in direct negotiations up to the point of arbitration. Upon reference to arbitration, the negotiating Committee members shall receive unpaid time off for the purpose of attending arbitration hearings.

It is understood and agreed that the maximum number of Union Central Negotiating Committee members entitled to payment under this provision shall be seven (7) (four (4) full-time and three (3) part-time employees), and in no case will more than one (1) employee from a hospital be entitled to such payment.

The Union shall advise the Hospitals' Central Negotiating Committee, before negotiations commence, of those employees to be paid under this provision. The Hospitals' Central Negotiating Committee shall advise the seven (7) Hospitals accordingly.

8.05 For Union Business

The Hospital agrees that permission shall be granted upon request to representatives of the Union to leave their assigned work in order to carry on investigations or negotiations with the Hospital with respect to a grievance or complaints and they shall suffer no loss of pay for the time so spent.

8.06 Grievance Committee

The Union Grievance Committee shall consist of not more than six (6) members, at least one (1) of which shall be from the full-time bargaining unit and one (1) from the part-time bargaining unit, as selected by the Union and as notified to the Hospital in writing. In the event of any change(s) to members of the Committee, the Union will immediately advise the Hospital of the change(s) and provide the new names. The President or her/his designated representative may also be present.

8.07 Stewards

The Union may appoint or otherwise select twenty-four (24) stewards (sixteen (16) full-time bargaining unit members and eight (8) part-time bargaining unit members) to assist employees in the presentation of any grievances that may arise. The Union shall notify the Hospital in writing of the names of such stewards. The Union will immediately advise the Hospital in writing of any change(s) and provide the new names.

8.08 Interchangeability of Stewards and Officers

The Hospital agrees that Stewards and Local Union Officers within Local 79 bargaining units at the Hospital may be involved in the investigating and processing of grievances and are interchangeable between the bargaining units.

8.09 Payment for Attending Meetings Outside Scheduled Hours

When an employee attends a committee meeting outside of regularly scheduled hours, either as a Hospital representative or as a CUPE, Local 79 representative, he/she will be paid for all hours in attendance at such meetings at his/her regular straight time hourly rate. In addition, a part-time employee shall be paid for any premium in lieu of benefits and vacation to which the employee may otherwise be entitled.

8.10 Conditions of Work Committee

In the event that the Hospital is considering the introduction of any changes in job content, work methods, organization, operations or processes which are likely to significantly effect the terms and working conditions of any employee(s) within the bargaining unit(s), the Hospital will notify the Union at least five (5) months before any changes are introduced. A detailed description of the changes which are intended to be carried out, with disclosure of all foreseeable effects and repercussions on employees, must accompany the notice.

For the purpose of this article, the term 'changes' includes any program to study, or initiatives to implement changes in job content, work methods, organization, operations or processes.

Within two weeks of receiving the notice, the Condition of Work Committee (C.W.C.) will meet to review the proposed changes. The members of the C.W.C. will attempt to reach agreement regarding the planning and implementation of the changes, including measures to protect employees from any adverse effects. All members of the C.W.C. will undertake their duties in good faith.

Participation by any employees of the bargaining unit in initiatives to study, implement or evaluate changes in job content, work methods, organization, operations or processes will be scheduled during their normal hours of work. Employees will be appointed by the Union.

The C.W.C. will meet following implementation at the request of either party to evaluate the changes and whether the measures to protect employees from adverse effects have been effective.

The C.W.C. shall be comprised of an equal number of representatives of the Hospital and the Union. The number of representatives shall be three (3) for each party.

Time spent attending and preparing for such meetings shall be deemed to be work for which the representative(s) shall be paid by the Hospital at his/her regular or premium rate as may be applicable and without loss of seniority, service credits and benefits or otherwise.

Each party shall appoint a co-chair of the C.W.C. Co-chairs shall chair alternate meetings of the committee and will be jointly responsible for establishing the agenda of the C.W.C. meetings.

8.11 Joint Professional Committee

The parties agree that it is beneficial for the Hospital and its employees to address concerns and participate in decisions that could affect the quality/quantity of patient care. A Joint Professional Committee will be established to deal with issues of change to work processes and operations and issues of workload and assignment.

In light of the agreements existing between CUPE and the Hospital, the Joint Professional Committee will be one joint Committee representing employees in the Nursing & Paramedical bargaining and RPNs in the Service bargaining unit.

The Joint Professional Committee shall be comprised of equal numbers of representatives of the Hospital and the Union. The composition of the committee shall include two (2) Members from the Service bargaining unit appointed by the Union. The Union shall have the right to have the assistance of a National Representative from CUPE or a Local 79 Official. At least one union Member shall be from the discipline(s) scheduled for discussion on the meeting agenda. The Committee shall meet once per month at a mutually agreeable time and place.

The parties agree that if the classifications of OTA, PTA, OTA/PTA or CDA become a regulated health profession under Ontario law and are subject to a regulatory body, the parties will meet to discuss inclusion of such classification in the scope of the Committee and any changes to committee membership deemed necessary.

1. Committee Mandate and Process

Time spent attending such meetings shall be deemed to be work time for which the Hospital employees from the Union shall be paid by the Hospital at their regular rate of pay without loss of seniority, service credits and benefits otherwise.

Each party shall appoint a co-chair from the Committee. Co-chairs shall chair alternate meetings of the Committee. The Co-chairs will be jointly responsible for establishing the agenda of the Committee meetings, which shall be provided to the Committee members at least one (1) week in advance.

A representative of the Hospital will take minutes of the meetings. The minutes will be circulated to all members of the Committee. Any issues which might arise with respect to the Minutes will be discussed at the next meeting. Any member who still wishes to note changes to the Minutes after the discussion will do so in writing. This will be appended to the Minutes.

2. Work Processes and Operations

In the event that the Hospital is considering introducing any non-minor changes to work processes and/or operations, excluding those required by immediate patient needs, which will affect the quality/quantity of patient care and/or work terms and conditions of RPNs within the Bargaining Unit, the Hospital will notify the Union as soon as is practicable and reasonable prior to the introduction of such changes. A description of the changes to be carried out, with disclosure of immediately foreseeable effects on employees, will be provided with the notice.

The Committee will meet to discuss the changes and recommend measures to protect employees from adverse effects, if any, that may result from the changes to be implemented. The changes will not be implemented prior to the first meeting. The parties acknowledge that every effort will be made to meet prior to the changes being implemented but that inability to meet will not prevent implementation of changes.

The parties will still meet to review the changes and make recommendations on their impact even if implementation has proceeded. The parties further agree that it is in the interest of both the Hospital and the Union to discuss threes issues well in advance of implementation and in time to adopt any recommendations that have been agreed to.

3. Workload and Assignment

In its monthly meetings the Committee will meet to discuss, investigate and resolve any issues raised by an individual RPN or a group of RPNs on a without prejudice basis, including but not limited to:

- (a) The review of written submissions by RPNs with respect to the equitable distribution of work within a unit or with respect to their workload submitted in accordance with section 6.
- (b) Providing a forum for RPNs to make oral submissions with respect to the equitable distribution of work within a unit or with respect to their workload; and

The Committee will also discuss:

(c) The assignment of an equitable distribution of work within a unit or a workload to an individual RPN or group of RPNs;

- (d) Questions with respect to the quantity and quality of patient care;
- (e) Content of Orientation and In-Service Programs from time to time and make recommendations for improvement;
- (f) Evaluation of the effectiveness of changes implemented by the Hospital
- (g) Other related matters.

4. Individual Complaints

The parties agree that patient care is enhanced if concerns relating to professional practice, patient acuity, fluctuating Work-Loads and fluctuating staffing are resolved in a timely manner. Any RPN wishing to raise a complaint with respect to the appropriateness of the number of patients assigned to them or their workload shall raise their concern(s) under Section 6: Workload Review Form. The matter will be placed on the agenda for the next scheduled Joint Professional Committee meeting unless the matter has been resolved. In accordance with Section 3 (1), the individual(s) shall attend the Joint Professional Committee meetings to present his or her position and/or to respond to questions of the Joint Professional Committee. Individuals shall receive the straight time rate of pay for attendance at that portion of the meeting dealing with their issue including any time spent waiting for the Committee to reach their issue during the meeting.

5. Hospital's Response

The Hospital shall respond in writing to the Union and the RPN(s) within twenty (20) days of the last meeting where the individual or group complaint was last discussed. The response will address each concern raised by the individual or group concerned and the Hospital's strategy(ies) for resolving the issues raised.

6. Workload Review Form

- (a) An RPN, or group of RPNs shall first raise their workload concern(s) to their immediate supervisor.
- (b) In the event that the workload concern(s) is not resolved to the satisfaction of the RPN or group of RPNs, the employee, or group of employees, may submit their concerns to the Joint Professional Committee using the "Workload Review Form" and will provide a copy of the completed form to each of the Employer and Union Co-chairs of the Committee. Such form must be submitted within 10 days of the incident

The Work-Load Review Form will be attached as an Appendix "A" to the Collective Agreement.

ARTICLE 9 - GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

9.01 For the purposes of this Agreement, a grievance is defined as a difference arising between the parties relating to the interpretation, application, administration or alleged violation of the Agreement, including any question as to whether a matter is arbitrable.

- **9.02** At the time formal discipline is imposed, or at any stage of the complaint stage, an employee shall have the right upon request to the presence of her/his steward. In the case of suspension or discharge, the Hospital shall notify the employee of this right in advance.
- 9.03 It is the mutual desire of the parties hereto that complaints of employees shall be adjusted as quickly as possible, and it is understood that an employee has no grievance until she/he has first given her/his immediate supervisor the opportunity of adjusting her/his complaint. Such complaint shall be discussed with her/his immediate supervisor within nine (9) calendar days after the circumstances giving rise to it have occurred or ought reasonably to have come to the attention of the employee, and failing settlement within nine (9) calendar days following advice of her/his immediate supervisor's decision in the following manner and sequence:

Step No. 1

Within nine (9) calendar days following the supervisor's decision or failing satisfactory settlement, the employee may submit a written grievance signed by the employee to her/his immediate supervisor. The grievance shall identify the nature of the grievance and the remedy sought and should identify the provisions of the Agreement which are alleged to be violated. The immediate supervisor will deliver her/his decision in writing within nine (9) calendar days following the day on which the grievance was presented to her/him. Failing settlement, then:

Step No. 2

Within nine (9) calendar days following the decision in Step No. 1, the grievance may be submitted in writing to the Director, Human Resources or her/his designee. A meeting will then be held between the Director, Human Resources or her/his designee and the Grievance Committee within nine (9) calendar days of the submission of the grievance at Step No. 2 unless extended by agreement of the parties. It is understood and agreed that a representative of the Canadian Union of Public Employees and the grievor may be present at the meeting. It is further understood that the Director, Human Resources or her/his designee may have such counsel and assistance as she/he may desire at such meeting. The decision of the Hospital shall be delivered in writing within nine (9) calendar days following the date of such meeting.

- 9.04 A complaint or grievance arising directly between the Hospital and the Union concerning the interpretation, application or alleged violation of the Agreement shall be originated at Step No. 2 within fourteen (14) calendar days following the circumstances giving rise to the complaint or grievance. It is expressly understood, however, that the provisions of this Article may not be used with respect to a grievance directly affecting an employee which such employee could himself/herself institute and the regular grievance procedure shall not be thereby bypassed.
- 9.05 Where a number of employees have identical grievances and each employee would be entitled to grieve separately, they may present a group grievance in writing identifying each employee who is grieving to the Department Head or her/his designee within fourteen (14) calendar days after the circumstances giving rise to the grievance have occurred or ought reasonably to have come to the attention of the employee(s). The

- grievance shall then be treated as being initiated at Step No. 2 and the applicable provisions of this Article shall then apply with respect to the processing of such grievance.
- 9.06 The release or discharge of an employee during the probationary period shall not be the subject of a grievance or arbitration. A claim by an employee who has completed her/his probationary period that she/he has been unjustly discharged or suspended shall be treated as a grievance if a written statement of such grievance is lodged by the employee with the Hospital at Step No. 2 within seven (7) calendar days after the date the discharge or suspension is affected. Such special grievance may be settled under the Grievance or Arbitration Procedure by:
 - (a) confirming the Hospital's action in dismissing the employee, or,
 - (b) reinstating the employee with or without full compensation for the time lost, or,
 - (c) by any other arrangement which may be deemed just and equitable.

Wherever the Hospital deems it necessary to suspend or discharge an employee, the Hospital shall notify the Union of such suspension or discharge in writing. The Hospital agrees that it will not suspend, discharge or otherwise discipline an employee who has completed her/his probationary period, without just cause.

- 9.07 (a) Failing settlement under the foregoing procedure of any grievance between the parties arising from the interpretation, application, administration or alleged violation of this Agreement, including any question as to whether a matter is arbitrable, such grievance may be submitted to arbitration as hereinafter provided. If no written request for arbitration is received within eighteen (18) calendar days after the decision under Step No. 2 is given, the grievance shall be deemed to have been abandoned. Where such a written request is postmarked within sixteen (16) calendar days after the decision under Step No. 2, it will be deemed to have been received within the time limits.
 - (b) The parties agree that it is their intent to resolve grievances without recourse to arbitration, wherever possible. Therefore, notwithstanding 9.07(a) above, the parties may, upon mutual agreement, engage the services of a mediator in an effort to resolve the grievances and may extend the time limits for the request for arbitration. The parties will share equally the fees and expense, if any, of the mediator.
- **9.08** All agreements reached under the grievance procedure between the representatives of the Hospital and the representatives of the Union will be final and binding upon the Hospital and the Union and the employees.
- 9.09 When either party requests that any matter be submitted to arbitration as provided in the foregoing Article, it shall make such request in writing addressed to the other party to this Agreement, and at the same time name a nominee. Within seven (7) calendar days thereafter the other party shall name a nominee, provided, however, that if such party fails to name a nominee as herein required, the Minister of Labour for the Province of Ontario shall have the power to effect such appointment upon application thereto by the party invoking arbitration procedure. The two (2) nominees shall attempt to select by agreement a chairperson of the Arbitration Board. If they are unable to agree upon such a chairperson within a period of fourteen (14) calendar days, they shall then request the Minister of Labour for the Province of Ontario to appoint a chairperson.

- **9.10** No person may be appointed as an arbitrator who has been involved in an attempt to negotiate or settle the grievance.
- **9.11** No matter may be submitted to arbitration which has not been properly carried through all requisite steps of the Grievance Procedure.
- **9.12** The Arbitration Board shall not be authorized to make any decision inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement, nor to alter, modify, add to or amend any part of this Agreement.
- **9.13** The proceedings of the Arbitration Board will be expedited by the parties hereto and the decision of the majority and, where there is no majority the decision of the chairperson will be final and binding upon the parties hereto and the employee or employees concerned.
- **9.14** Each of the parties hereto will bear the expense of the nominee appointed by it and the parties will share equally the fees and expenses, if any, of the chairperson of the Arbitration Board.
- **9.15** The time limits set out in the Grievance and Arbitration Procedures herein are mandatory and failure to comply strictly with such time limits, except by the written agreement of the parties, shall result in the grievance being deemed to have been abandoned subject only to the provisions of Section 48(16) of the Labour Relations Act, 1995.
- 9.16 Wherever Arbitration Board is referred to in the Agreement, the parties may mutually agree in writing to substitute a single arbitrator for the Arbitration Board at the time of reference to arbitration and the other provisions referring to Arbitration Board shall appropriately apply.

ARTICLE 10 - ACCESS TO FILES

10.01 Access to Personnel File

Each employee shall have reasonable access to her/his personnel file for the purpose of reviewing any evaluations or formal disciplinary notations contained therein, in the presence of the Director, Human Resources or designate and shop steward, union representative, or co-worker of their choice if they so request. An employee has the right to request copies of any evaluations in this file. No disciplinary notation or performance evaluation shall be added to an employee's Personnel File until a copy of such document has been provided to the employee.

10.02 Clearing of Record

Full-time Employees:

The record of an employee shall not be used against her/him at any time after twenty-four (24) months following a suspension or disciplinary action, including letters of reprimand or any adverse reports.

Part-time Employees:

Any letter of reprimand, suspension or any other sanction will be removed from the record of an employee eighteen (18) months following the receipt of such letter, suspension or other sanction provided that such employee's record has been discipline free for one (1) year.

ARTICLE 11 - SENIORITY

11.01 Probationary Period

(a) Full-time Employees:

A new employee will be considered on probation until she/he has completed forty-five (45) days of work (or 337.5 hours of work for employees whose regular hours of work are other than the standard workday), within any twelve (12) calendar months. Upon completion of the probationary period she/he shall be credited with seniority equal to forty-five (45) working days.

(b) Part-time Employees:

A new employee will be considered on probation until she/he has completed three hundred and thirty-seven and a half (337.5) hours worked. Upon completion of the probationary period she/he shall be credited with seniority equal to three hundred and thirty-seven and a half (337.5) hours.

(c) Full-time and Part-time Employees:

With the written consent of the Hospital, the probationary employee and the President of the Local Union or designate, such probationary period may be extended. Any extensions agreed to will be in writing and will specify the length of the extension. The release or discharge of an employee during the probationary period shall not be the subject of a grievance or arbitration.

11.02 Definition of Seniority

Full-time Employees:

Full-time employees will accumulate seniority on the basis of their continuous service in the bargaining unit from the last date of hire, except as otherwise provided herein.

Seniority will operate on a bargaining unit-wide basis.

Notwithstanding the above, employees hired prior to October 10, 1986 will be credited with the seniority they held under the Agreement expiring September 28, 1985 and will thereafter accumulate seniority in accordance with this Article.

Part-time Employees:

(a) Part-time employees will accumulate seniority on the basis of hours paid in the bargaining unit from the last date of hire, except as provided herein.

Seniority will operate on a bargaining unit-wide basis.

- (b) An employee whose status is changed from full-time to part-time shall receive full credit for her/his seniority and service based on fifteen hundred (1500) hours paid for each one (1) year of service provided that the full-time employee's full-time position was within the equivalent full-time bargaining unit.
- (c) An employee whose status is changed from part-time to full-time shall receive credit for her/his seniority and service on the basis of one (1) year for each fifteen hundred (1500) hours paid, provided that the part-time employee's part-time position was within the equivalent part-time bargaining unit.
- (d) An employee whose status changes from full-time to part-time, whose full-time position was not within the equivalent full-time bargaining unit, shall receive credit for service based on fifteen hundred (1500) hours paid for each one (1) year of service for the purpose of vacation entitlement, and shall not receive credit for the purposes of seniority or service for the purpose of wage progression. An employee whose status is changed from part-time to full-time whose position was not within the equivalent part-time bargaining unit, shall receive credit for service for the purpose of vacation entitlement on the basis of one (1) year for each fifteen hundred (1500) hours paid, and shall not receive credit for the purposes of seniority, or service for the purpose of wage progression.

The above-noted employee shall be allowed a trial period of up to two hundred and twenty-five (225) hours during which the Hospital will determine if the employee can satisfactorily perform the job. Within this period the employee may voluntarily return, or be returned without loss of seniority to his former duties on the same shift in the same department and at the appropriate rate of pay, subject to any changes which would have occurred had he/she not transferred.

- (e) Effective January 1, 2004 a part-time employee cannot accrue more than one (1) year's seniority in a calendar year.
- (f) Effective October 27, 2008, in the application of seniority, no employee's seniority date may pre-date their date of hire as defined in this Article.

11.03 Loss of Seniority

An employee shall lose all seniority and service and shall be deemed to have terminated if she/he:

- (a) resigns;
- (b) is discharged and not reinstated through the grievance/ arbitration procedure;
- (c) is retired;
- (d) is absent from scheduled work for a period of three (3) or more consecutive working days without notifying the Hospital of such absence and providing to the Hospital a satisfactory reason;

- (e) has been laid off for forty-eight (48) months;
- (f) if the employee has been laid off and fails to return to work within seven (7) calendar days after that employee has been notified by the Hospital through registered mail addressed to the last address on the records of the Hospital, subject to any special provisions regarding temporary vacancies noted under the heading of Lay-off and Recall.

11.04 Effect of Absence

Full-time Employees:

- (a) It is understood that during an approved unpaid absence not exceeding thirty (30) continuous days or any approved absence paid by the Hospital, both seniority and service will accrue.
- (b) During an unpaid absence exceeding thirty (30) continuous calendar days, credit for service for purposes of salary increment, vacation, sick leave, or any other benefits under any provisions of the Collective Agreement or elsewhere, shall be suspended for the period of the absence in excess of thirty (30) continuous calendar days, the benefits concerned appropriately reduced on a pro rata basis and the employee's anniversary date adjusted accordingly. In addition, the employee will become responsible for full payment of subsidized employee benefits in which she/he is participating for the period of the absence, except that the Hospital will continue to pay its share of the premiums for up to thirty (30) months while an employee is in receipt of W.S.I.B. benefits. Notwithstanding this provision, service shall accrue for a period of fifteen (15) weeks if an employee's absence is due to a disability resulting in W.S.I.B. benefits.
- (c) It is further understood that during such unpaid absence, credit for seniority for purposes of promotion, demotion, transfer or lay-off shall be suspended and not accrue during the period of absence. Notwithstanding this provision, seniority shall accrue for the duration of the absence, if an employee's absence is due to a disability resulting in W.S.I.B. benefits, L.T.D. benefits, or while an employee is on paid or unpaid sick leave (including the Employment Insurance period).

Part-time Employees:

Part-time employees shall accrue seniority for the duration of the absence and service for a period of fifteen (15) weeks if absent due to a disability resulting in W.S.I.B benefits on the basis of what the employee's normal regular hours of work would have been.

11.05 Job Posting

Posting Notice

Full-time Employees:

(a) Where a permanent vacancy occurs in a classification within the bargaining unit or a new position within the bargaining unit is established by the Hospital, such vacancy

shall be posted for a period of seven (7) consecutive calendar days. Applications for such vacancy shall be made in writing within the seven (7) day period referred to herein.

Part-time Employees:

(b) Where a permanent regular part-time vacancy occurs in a classification within the bargaining unit or a new position within the bargaining unit is established by the Hospital, such vacancy shall be posted for a period of seven (7) consecutive calendar days. Applications for such vacancy shall be made in writing within the seven (7) day period referred to herein.

Full-time/Part-time Employees:

(c) The postings shall stipulate the qualifications, classifications, rate of pay, shift, unit, program or department where applicable and a copy shall be provided to the Union concurrent with the posting.

Appointing of Successful Candidate

Full-time/Part-time Employees:

- (d) In matters of promotion and staff transfer, appointment shall be made of the senior applicant able to meet the normal requirements of the job. Successful employees need not be considered for other vacancies within a six (6) month period unless an opportunity arises which allows the employee to change his/her permanent status (i.e. from part-time status to full-time status or change in job classification). It is understood that, for the purpose of determining an applicant's seniority for a job posting, the Hospital shall use applicant seniority accrued at the end of the pay period immediately preceding the date of the commencement of the job posting.
- (e) The name of the successful applicant, the job posting number, and the job classification and Department/Unit awarded to the successful applicant, will be posted on the bulletin board for a period of seven (7) calendar days. Upon request, the Hospital shall inform the unsuccessful candidates of the seniority used to determine their ranking, and the seniority of the successful candidate.
- (f) Where there are no successful applicants from within the bargaining unit in which the vacant position was posted, employees in other CUPE bargaining units at the Hospital will be considered for such positions prior to considering persons not employed by the Hospital. The employees eligible for consideration shall be limited to those employees who have applied for the position in accordance with this Article, and selection shall be made in accordance with this Article.

Trial Period and Reversion to Former Position

Full-time/Part-time Employees:

(g) The successful full-time applicant shall be allowed a trial period of up to thirty (30) days or up to two hundred and twenty-five (225) hours if part-time, during which the

Hospital will determine if the employee can satisfactorily perform the job. Within this trial period the employee may voluntarily return, or be returned by the Hospital to the position formerly occupied, without loss of seniority. The vacancy resulting from the posting may be filled on a temporary basis until the trial period is completed.

(h) A copy of such notice will be forwarded to the Union office and such notice shall contain at least the following information: nature of position, required knowledge and education, ability and skills, shift, and wage and salary rate or range. It is understood that, once posted, the Hospital may in its discretion fill such vacancy on an interim basis. If the position is not filled within sixty (60) consecutive days of the posting, the Union and the Department Head shall meet to discuss the reason. The Hospital agrees that it shall post permanent vacant positions within thirty (30) calendar days of the position becoming vacant, unless the Hospital provides the Union notice under Article 11.07 of its intention to eliminate the position.

Temporary Vacancies Less than Six (6) Months

It is understood that temporary vacancies, the duration of which are not to exceed six (6) months, and which are expected to be filled by temporary employees, will not be posted.

Full-time Employees:

(i) Temporary vacancy shall be considered as one that is caused by the absence of a full-time employee due to sickness, injury, absenteeism, or a temporary leave of absence authorized by the employer, vacations or a temporary increase in work. Temporary vacancies will not be posted; however, when filling a temporary vacancy the Hospital shall give preference to the senior employee in the Department that can qualify to perform the work to be done. If, in the opinion of the Hospital, no such employee is qualified to complete the temporary vacancy, an appointment will be made to a person outside of the Bargaining Unit.

Part-time Employees:

(j) Temporary vacancy shall be considered as one that is caused by the absence of a part-time employee due to sickness, injury, absenteeism, or a temporary leave of absence authorized by the employer, vacations or a temporary increase in work. Temporary vacancies will not be posted; however, when filling a temporary vacancy the Hospital shall give preference to the senior employee in the Department that can qualify to perform the work to be done. If, in the opinion of the Hospital, no such employee is qualified to complete the temporary vacancy, an appointment will be made to a person outside of the Bargaining Unit.

Process for Temporary to Permanent Conversion

Full-time/Part-time Employees:

(k) If a temporary vacancy caused by an increase in work continues for more than thirty (30) consecutive days, the Union and the Department Head shall discuss whether the job shall continue as temporary or be posted as a permanent vacancy. If upon review as set out above, it is determined that the reasons for the temporary job

changes no longer exist, then the employee shall return to her/his original job. If the review determines that a regular vacancy has occurred, then it shall be posted in the usual manner.

- (I) The Hospital will provide on a monthly basis a copy of all job postings and successful applicants to the Union.
- (m) A list of vacancies filled in the preceding month and the names of the successful applicants will be posted, with a copy to the Union.
- (n) Employees filling a temporary full-time vacancy of greater than six (6) months will have the option of receiving percentage in lieu of benefits or enrolling in medical and dental benefits in accordance with the respective plan text for permanent full-time employees as outlined in Article 20, and shall not exceed the duration of the temporary vacancy assignment.

Note: Full-time employees shall not be eligible to receive percentage in lieu of benefits.

(o) On a quarterly basis, for the previous quarter, the Hospital will provide Local 79 with a list of all personas occupying temporary vacancies in excess of six (6) months, including start date and duration of the vacancy. The list shall include the classification and status (FT/PT) of the temporary position.

11.06 Transfer and Seniority Outside the Bargaining Unit

For part-time employees transferred out of the bargaining unit or for full-time employees transferred out of the bargaining unit subsequent to February 20, 1987:

- (a) It is understood that an employee shall not be transferred by the Hospital to a position outside the bargaining unit without her/his consent. In the case of temporary assignments not exceeding six (6) months, such employees on temporary assignments shall remain members of the bargaining unit.
- (b) (1) Full-time employees:

An employee who is transferred to a position outside the bargaining unit shall not, subject to (c) below, accumulate seniority. In the event the employee is returned by the Hospital to a position in the bargaining unit she/he shall be credited with the seniority held at the time of transfer and resume accumulation from the date of her/his return to the bargaining unit.

(b) (2) Part-time employees:

An employee who is transferred to a position outside the bargaining unit shall not, subject to (c) below, accumulate seniority. In the event the employee is returned by the Hospital to a position in the bargaining unit within fifteen (15) months, she/he shall be credited with the seniority held at the time of transfer and resume accumulation from the date of her/his return to the bargaining unit.

(c) In the event an employee transferred out of the bargaining unit under (b) above is returned to the bargaining unit within a period of twelve (12) calendar months or

fifteen (15) calendar months if replacing someone on pregnancy/parental leave she/he shall continue to accumulate seniority during the period of time outside the bargaining unit.

Note: Full-time employees outside the bargaining unit as of February 20, 1987 will be credited with whatever seniority they held under the Collective Agreement expiring September 28, 1984, should they be returned to the bargaining unit subsequent to February 20/1987.

11.07 Notice and Redeployment Committee

(a) Notice

In the event of a proposed lay-off at the Hospital of a permanent or long-term nature, or the elimination of a position within the bargaining unit, the Hospital shall:

- (i) provide the Union with no less than five (5) months written notice of the proposed lay-off or elimination of position; and
- (ii) provide to the affected employee(s), if any, no less than five (5) months written notice of lay-off, or pay in lieu thereof.

Note: Where a proposed lay-off results in the subsequent displacement of any member(s) of the bargaining unit, the original notice to the Union provided in (i) above shall be considered notice to the Union of any subsequent lay-off.

(b) Redeployment Committee

At each hospital, a Redeployment Committee will be established not later than two (2) weeks after the notice referred to in 11.07 and will meet thereafter as frequently as is necessary.

(i) Committee Mandate

The mandate of the Redeployment Committee is to:

- (1) Identify and propose possible alternatives to the proposed lay-off(s) or elimination of position(s), including, but not limited to, identifying work which would otherwise be bargaining unit work and is currently work contracted-out by the Hospital which could be performed by bargaining-unit employees who are or would otherwise be laid off;
- (2) Identify vacant positions in the Hospital or positions which are currently filled but which will become vacant within a twelve (12) month period and which are either:
 - (a) within the bargaining unit; or
 - (b) within another CUPE bargaining unit; or
 - (c) not covered by a Collective Agreement.

- (3) Identify the re-training needs of workers and facilitate such training for workers who are, or would otherwise be, laid off.
- (4) Subject to Article 11.11(b), the Hospital will award vacant positions to employees who are, or would otherwise be laid off, in order of seniority, if with the benefit of up to six (6) months re-training, an employee has become able to meet the normal requirements of the job.
- (5) Any dispute relating to the foregoing provisions may be filed as a grievance commencing at Step 2.

(ii) Committee Composition

The Redeployment Committee shall be comprised of equal numbers of representatives of the Hospital and of the Union. The Union will have a minimum of three (3) representatives on this committee. Where for the purposes of HTAP (the Ontario Hospitals Training and Adjustment Panel) there is another hospital-wide staffing and redeployment committee created or in existence, Union members of the Redeployment Committee shall serve on any such hospital-wide staffing committee established with the same or similar terms of reference, and the number of Union members on such committee will be proportionate to the number of its bargaining unit members at the particular Hospital in relation to other staff groups.

Meetings of the Redeployment Committee shall be held during normal working hours. Time spent attending such meeting shall be deemed to be work time for which the representatives shall be paid by the Hospital at her/his regular or premium rate as may be applicable.

Each party shall appoint a co-chair for the Redeployment Committee. Co-chairs shall chair alternative meetings of the Committee and will be jointly responsible for establishing the agenda of the Committee meetings, preparing minutes and writing such correspondence as the Committee may direct.

(iii) Disclosure

The Hospital shall provide to the Redeployment Committee all pertinent staffing and financial information.

(iv) Alternatives

The Redeployment Committee, or where there is no consensus, the Committee members shall propose alternatives to cutbacks in staffing to the Hospital's Chief Executive Officer and to the Board of Directors.

At the time of submitting any plan concerning rationalization of services and involving the elimination of any position(s) or any lay-off(s) to the District Health Council or to the Ministry of Health, the Hospital shall provide a copy, together with accompanying documentation, to the Union.

11.08 Lay-off and Recall

- (a) A layoff shall not include a reassignment of an employee from her or his classification or area of assignment who would otherwise be entitled to notice of layoff provided:
 - (i) the reassignment of the employee is to an appropriate permanent job with the employer having regard to the employee's skills, abilities, qualifications and training or training requirements;
 - (ii) the reassignment of the employee does not result in a reduction of the employee's wage rate or hours of work;
 - (iii) the job to which the employee is reassigned is on the same or substantially similar shift or shifts rotation; and
 - (iv) where more than one employee is to be reassigned in accordance with this provision, the reassigned employees shall be entitled to select from the available appropriate vacancies to which they are being reassigned in order of seniority provided no such selection causes or would cause a layoff or bumping.

The Hospital bears the onus of demonstrating that the foregoing conditions have been met in the event of a dispute. The Hospital shall also reasonably accommodate any reassigned employee who may experience a personal hardship arising from being reassigned in accordance with this position.

- (b) Any vacancy to which an employee is reassigned pursuant to Article 11.08(a) need not be posted.
- (c) An employee in receipt of notice of lay-off pursuant to 11.07(a) (ii) may:
 - (i) accept the lay-off, or
 - (ii) opt to receive a separation allowance as outlined in Article 11.12; or
 - (iii) opt to retire, if eligible under the terms of the Hospitals of Ontario Pension Plan (HOOPP) as outlined in Article 20.03(b); or
 - (iv) displace another employee who has lesser bargaining unit seniority in the same or a lower or an identical-paying classification in the bargaining unit if the employee originally subject to lay-off has the ability to meet the normal requirements of the job. An employee so displaced shall be deemed to have been laid off and shall be entitled to notice in accordance with Article 11.07.

An employee who chooses to exercise the right to displace another employee with lesser seniority shall advise the Hospital of her/his intention to do so and the position claimed within seven (7) days after receiving the notice of lay-off.

(v) In the event that there are no employees with lesser seniority in the same or a lower or a identical paying classification, as defined in this article, a

laid-off employee shall have the right to displace another employee with lesser seniority in a higher paying classification provided they are able to meet the normal requirements of the job, with orientation but without additional training.

An employee who is subject to lay-off other than a lay-off of a permanent or long-term nature shall have the right to accept the lay-off or displace another employee in accordance with (a) and (d) above.

An employee shall have opportunity of recall from a lay-off to an available opening, in order of seniority, provided she/he has the ability to perform the work before such opening is filled on a regular basis under a job posting procedure. The posting procedure in the Collective Agreement shall not apply until the recall process has been completed.

In determining the ability of an employee to perform the work for the purposes of the paragraphs above, the Hospital shall not act in an arbitrary or unfair manner.

An employee recalled to work in a different classification from which she/he was laid off shall have the privilege of returning to the position she/he held prior to the lay-off should it become vacant within six (6) months of being recalled.

No new employees shall be hired until all those laid off have been given an opportunity to return to work and have failed to do so, in accordance with the loss of seniority provision, or have been found unable to perform the work available.

The Hospital shall notify the employee of recall opportunity by registered mail, addressed to the last address on record with the Hospital (which notification shall be deemed to be received on the second day following the date of mailing). The notification shall state the job to which the employee is eligible to be recalled and the date and time at which the employee shall report for work. The employee is solely responsible for her/his proper address being on record with the Hospital.

Employees on lay-off shall be given preference for temporary vacancies which are expected to exceed ten (10) working days. An employee who has been recalled to such temporary vacancy shall not be required to accept such recall and may instead remain on lay-off.

No full-time employee within the bargaining unit shall be laid off by reason of her/his duties being assigned to one or more part-time employees.

In the event of a lay-off of an employee, the Hospital shall pay its share of insured benefits premiums for the duration of the five-month notice period provided for in Article 11.07.

11.09 Benefits on Lay-off – Full-time Employees

In the event of a lay-off of a full-time employee, the Hospital shall pay its share of insured benefits premium up to three (3) months from the end of the month in which the lay-off occurs or until the laid off employee is employed elsewhere, whichever occurs first.

11.10 Technological Change

The Hospital undertakes to notify the Union in advance, so far as practicable, of any technological changes which the Hospital has decided to introduce which will significantly change the status of employees within the bargaining unit.

The Hospital agrees to discuss with the Union the effect of such technological changes on the employment status of employees and to consider practical ways and means of minimizing the adverse effect, if any, upon employees concerned.

Where new or greater skills are required than are already possessed by affected employees under the present methods of operation, such employees shall be given a period of training with due consideration being given to the employee's age and previous educational background, during which they may perfect or acquire the skills necessitated by the new method of operation. The employer will assume the cost of tuition and travel. There shall be no reduction in wage or salary rates during the training period of any such employee. Training shall be given during the hours of work whenever possible and may extend for up to six (6) months.

Employees with one (1) or more years of continuous service who are subject to lay-off under conditions referred to above will be given notice of the impending change in employment status at the earliest reasonable time in keeping with the notification to the Union as above set forth and the requirements of the applicable law.

11.11 Re-training

(a) Re-training for positions within the Hospital

Where, with the benefit of re-training of up to six (6) months, an employee who has either accepted the lay-off or who is unable to displace any other employee could be redeployed to a Hospital position identified by the Redeployment Committee in accordance with Article 11.07 (b)(i):

- (i) Opportunities to fill vacant positions identified by the Hospital Redeployment Committee through re-training shall be offered to employees who apply and would qualify for the position with the available re-training in order of their seniority until the list of any such opportunities is exhausted. Opportunities to fill vacancies outside of CUPE bargaining units may be offered by the Hospital in its discretion.
- (ii) The Hospital and the Union will cooperate so that employees who have received notice of permanent lay-off and been approved for retraining in order to prevent a lay-off will have their work schedules adjusted in order to enable them to participate in the re-training and scheduling, and seniority requirements may by mutual agreement be waived. The Redeployment Committee will seek the assistance of any federal or provincial retraining program funds to cover the cost of tuition, books and any travel as well as any wages and/or financial assistance eligible under the terms of such program.
- (iii) Apart from any on-the-job training offered by the Hospital, any employee subject to lay-off who may require a leave of absence to undertake re-training in

- accordance with the foregoing shall be granted an unpaid leave of absence which shall not exceed six (6) months.
- (iv) Laid off employees who are approved for re-training in order to qualify for a vacant position within the Hospital will continue to receive insured benefits.

(b) Placement

Upon successful completion of her/his training period, the Hospital and the Union undertake to waive any restrictions, which might otherwise apply, and the employee will be placed in the job identified in 11.11(a)(i).

An employee subject to lay-off who applies but later declines to accept a re-training offer or fails to complete the training will remain subject to lay-off.

11.12 Separation Allowance

- (a) Where an employee resigns within one (1) month (30 days) after receiving notice of lay-off pursuant to Article 11.07(a)(ii) that her/his position will be eliminated, she/he shall be entitled to a separation allowance of two (2) weeks salary for each year of continuous service to a maximum of sixteen (16) weeks pay, and, on production of receipts from an approved educational program within twelve (12) months of resignation, may be reimbursed for tuition fees up to a maximum of three thousand dollars (\$3,000).
- (b) Where an employee resigns later than one (1) month after receiving notice pursuant to Article 11.07(a)(ii) that her/his position will be eliminated, she/he shall be entitled to a separation allowance of four (4) weeks salary, and, on production of receipts from an approved educational program, within twelve (12) months of resignation, may be reimbursed for tuition fees up to a maximum of one thousand two hundred and fifty dollars (\$1,250).

11.13 Recognition of Previous Experience

Full-time Employees:

An employee hired by the Hospital with recent and related experience may claim consideration for such experience at the time of hiring on a form to be supplied by the Hospital. Any such claim shall be accompanied by verification of previous related experience. The Hospital shall then evaluate such experience during the probationary period following hiring. Where in the opinion of the Hospital such experience is determined to be relevant, the employee shall be slotted in that step of the wage progression consistent with one (1) year's service for every one (1) year of related experience in the classification upon completion of the employee's probationary period. It is understood and agreed that the foregoing shall not constitute a violation of the wage schedule under the Collective Agreement.

Part-time Employees:

An employee hired by the Hospital with recent and related experience may claim consideration for such experience at the time of hiring on a form to be supplied by the

Hospital. Any such claim shall be accompanied by verification of previous related experience. The Hospital shall then evaluate such experience during the probationary period following hiring. Where in the opinion of the Hospital such experience is determined to be relevant, the employee shall be slotted in that step of the wage progression consistent with one (1) year's service for every fifteen hundred (1500) hours of related experience in the classification upon completion of the employee's probationary period. It is understood and agreed that the foregoing shall not constitute a violation of the wage schedule under the Collective Agreement.

- **11.14** The Hospital shall maintain a seniority list showing the date upon which each employee's service commenced. An up-to-date seniority list shall be sent to the Union in hard copy and electronic form and posted on all bulletin boards in January and July of each year.
- **11.15** Seniority shall determine shift preference, subject only to ability to perform the job required, where employees are not on a regular rotating shift.
- **11.16** Employees hired for a fixed period to replace regular part-time employees during the vacation of full-time employees will not be entitled to access the lay-off and recall provisions of the Collective Agreement.

11.17 Tie Breakers

Where two or more employees have the same seniority the employees' seniority ranking shall be determined by ordering the employees in descending alphabetical order by surname held on the last date of hire. In the event two or more employees with equal seniority have the same surname then the employees' seniority ranking shall be determined by ordering the employees in descending alphabetical order by their legal given name.

ARTICLE 12 - CONTRACTING OUT/IN

12.01 Contracting Out

The Hospital shall not contract out any work usually performed by members of the bargaining unit if, as a result of such contracting out, a lay-off of any employees other than casual part-time employees results from such contracting out. Contracting out to an employer who is organized and who will employ the employees of the bargaining unit who would otherwise be laid off, with similar terms and conditions of employment is not a breach of this provision.

12.02 Contracting In

Further to Article 11.07(b)(i)(1), the parties agree that the Redeployment Committee will immediately undertake a review of any existing sub-contract work which would otherwise be bargaining unit work and which may be subject to expiry and open for renegotiation within six (6) months with a view to assessing the practicality and cost-effectiveness of having such work performed within the Hospital by members of the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 13 - WORK OF THE BARGAINING UNIT

13.01 Employees not covered by the terms of this Agreement will not perform duties normally assigned to those employees who are covered by this Agreement, except for the purposes of instruction, experimentation, or in emergencies when regular employees are not readily available.

13.02 Volunteers

The use of volunteers to perform bargaining unit work, as covered by this agreement, shall not be expanded beyond the extent of existing practice as of June 1, 1986.

Effective July 15, 2002, the Hospital shall submit to the Union figures indicating the number of volunteers as of June 30, 2002. Thereafter, the Hospital shall submit to the Union, at three (3) month intervals, the number of volunteers for the current month and the number of hours worked and the duties performed.

ARTICLE 14 - LEAVES OF ABSENCE

14.01 Personal Leave

Written requests for a personal leave of absence without pay will be considered on an individual basis by the Hospital. Such requests are to be submitted at least four (4) weeks in advance, except in cases of emergency, and a written reply will be given within seven (7) calendar days except in cases of emergency in which case a reply will be given as soon as possible. Such leave shall not be unreasonably withheld.

14.02 Union Business

Leave of absence without pay will be granted by the Hospital to not more than five (5) employees at a time to attend Union conventions or seminars. The granting of such leave shall be conditional upon the Hospital receiving a minimum of fourteen (14) days notice for seminars, and twenty-one (21) days notice for conventions, of the names of employees prior to the effective date of the leave.

Such employee shall receive her/his pay and benefits, if requested, as provided for in the Agreement, but the Union shall reimburse the Employer for all pay and benefits during the period of absence.

14.03 Full-time Position with the Union or Full-time Public Office

Leave of absence will be granted by the Hospital to not more than four (4) employees at a time who are selected to work on a full-time basis for the Union. The Hospital will be notified at least one (1) month in advance of the date on which such leave is to commence. If requested, such employee shall receive her/his pay and benefits as provided for in the Collective Agreement, and the Union shall reimburse the Employer monthly for all pay and benefits during the period of absence. Such leave shall be granted without loss of seniority and service and the resulting vacancy(ies) shall be filled as a temporary vacancy, notwithstanding Article 11.05. It is understood that this does not preclude the Hospital invoking the Article 11.07 process with respect to these positions.

Leave of absence without pay will be granted to an employee who may be elected to public office. An employee who contemplates running for such office shall notify the Hospital as far in advance as practicable. The duration of such leave shall not exceed one term of office.

14.04 Bereavement

An employee shall be granted four (4) regularly scheduled consecutive work days leave without loss of pay to attend the bereavement of a parent, spouse or child. An employee shall be granted three (3) regularly scheduled consecutive workdays leave without loss of pay to attend the bereavement of a brother, sister, grandparents, grandparent of spouse, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, and grandchild.

If the death of any person above necessitates travel in excess of three hundred (300) miles up to five (5) days may be granted.

An employee shall be granted one (1) day bereavement without loss of regular earnings to attend the funeral of, or a memorial service (or equivalent) for her or his aunt, uncle, niece or nephew.

The Hospital may also grant, in addition to the above, leave of absence without pay. Such leave of absence without pay shall not be in excess of twenty-five (25) calendar days.

One-half (1/2) day shall be granted without loss of pay to attend a funeral as a pallbearer (provided such employee has the approval of her/his Supervisor).

Notwithstanding the above, individuals will be granted flexibility to distribute their bereavement leave entitlement over two (2) occasions in order to accommodate religious and cultural diversity.

14.05 Jury & Witness Duty

If an employee is required to serve as a juror in any court of law, or is required to attend as a witness in a court proceeding in which the Crown is a party, or is required by subpoena to attend a court of law or coroner's inquest in connection with a case arising from the employee's duties at the Hospital, the employee shall not lose regular pay because of such attendance provided that the employee:

- (a) notifies the Hospital immediately on the employee's notification that she/he will be required to attend at court;
- (b) presents proof of service requiring the employee's attendance;
- (c) deposits with the Hospital the full amount of compensation received excluding mileage, travelling and meal allowances and an official receipt thereof.

In addition to the foregoing, where an employee is required by subpoena to attend a court of law or coroner's inquest in connection with a case arising from the employee's duties at the Hospital on her/his regularly scheduled day off, the Hospital will attempt to reschedule the employee's regular day off. Where the employee's attendance is required during a different shift than she/he is scheduled to work that day, the Hospital will attempt to reschedule the shift to include the time spent at such hearing. It is understood that any rescheduling shall not result in the payment of any premium pay.

Where the Hospital is unable to reschedule the employee and, as a result, she/he is required to attend during other than her/his regularly scheduled paid hours, she/he shall be paid for all hours actually spent at such hearing at her/his straight time hourly rate subject to (a), (b) and (c) above.

14.06 Pregnancy Leave

- (a) Pregnancy leave will be granted in accordance with the provisions of the Employment Standards Act, except where amended in this provision. The service requirement for eligibility for pregnancy leave shall be thirteen (13) weeks of continuous service.
- (b) The employee shall give written notification at least two (2) weeks in advance of the date of commencement of such leave and the expected date of return. At such time she shall also furnish the Hospital with the certificate of a legally qualified medical practitioner stating the expected birth date.
- (c) The employee shall re-confirm her intention to return to work on the date originally approved in sub-section (b) above by written notification received by the Hospital at least two (2) weeks in advance thereof.
- (d) Effective on confirmation by the Employment Insurance Commission of the appropriateness of the Hospital's Supplementary Employment Benefit (SUB) Plan, an employee who is on pregnancy leave as provided under this agreement who has applied for and is in receipt of Employment Insurance pregnancy benefits pursuant to Section 22 of the Employment Insurance Act shall be paid a supplemental unemployment benefit for a period not exceeding fifteen (15) weeks. The supplement shall be equivalent to the difference between ninety-three per cent (93%) of her normal weekly earnings and the sum of her weekly Employment Insurance benefits and any other earnings. Receipt by the Hospital of the employee's Employment Insurance cheque stubs shall constitute proof that she is in receipt of Employment Insurance pregnancy benefits.

The employee's normal weekly earnings shall be determined by multiplying her regular hourly rate on her last day worked prior to the commencement of the leave times her normal weekly hours plus any wage increase or salary increment that she would be entitled to receive if she were not on pregnancy leave.

In addition to the foregoing, the Hospital will pay the employee ninety-three per cent (93%) of her normal weekly earnings during the first two (2) week period of the leave while waiting to receive Employment Insurance benefits.

The employee does not have any vested right except to receive payments for the covered unemployment period. The plan provides that payment in respect of

guaranteed annual remuneration or in respect of deferred remuneration or severance pay benefits are not reduced or increased by payments received under the plan.

(e) Credits for service and seniority shall accumulate for a period of up to seventeen (17) weeks while an employee is on pregnancy leave.

Full-time Employees:

The Hospital will continue to pay its share of the contributions of the subsidized employee benefits, including pension, in which the employee is participating for a period of up to seventeen (17) weeks while the employee is on pregnancy leave.

Part-time Employees:

The Hospital will continue to pay the percentage in lieu of benefits and its share of the pension contribution, in which the employee is participating for a period of up to seventeen (17) weeks while the employee is on pregnancy leave. The Hospital will register these benefits as part of the Supplemental Unemployment Benefit Plan with the Employment Insurance Commission.

- (f) Subject to any changes to the employee's status which would have occurred had she not been on pregnancy leave, the employee shall be reinstated to her former duties, on the same shift in the same department, and at the same rate of pay.
- (g) When persons are hired to replace employees who are on approved pregnancy leave, the period of employment of such persons will not exceed the pregnancy leave. The release or discharge of such persons shall not be the subject of a grievance or arbitration.

This clause would not preclude such employees from using the job posting provision under the Collective Agreement and any successful applicant who has completed her/his probation period will be credited with the appropriate seniority.

The Hospital will outline to employees selected to fill such temporary vacancies, the circumstances giving rise to the vacancy, and the special conditions relating to such employment.

14.07 Parental Leave

- (a) Parental leave will be granted in accordance with the provisions of the Employment Standards Act, except where amended in this provision. The service requirement for eligibility for parental leave shall be thirteen (13) weeks of continuous service.
- (b) An employee who qualifies for parental leave, other than an adoptive parent, shall give written notification of at least two (2) weeks in advance of the date of the commencement of such leave and the expected date of return.

For the purposes of this article, parent shall be defined to include a person with whom a child is placed for adoption and a person who is in a relationship of some permanence with a parent of a child and who intends to treat the child as her/his own.

(c) An employee who is an adoptive parent shall advise the Hospital as far in advance as possible of having qualified to adopt a child, and shall request the leave of absence, in writing, upon receipt of confirmation of the pending adoption. If, because of late receipt of confirmation of the pending adoption, the employee finds it impossible to request the leave of absence in writing, the request may be made verbally and subsequently verified in writing.

An employee who is an adoptive parent may extend the parental leave for such greater time as may be required by the adoption agency concerned to a maximum total of six (6) months.

- (d) The employee shall reconfirm her/his intention to return to work on the date originally approved in sub-section (c) above by written notification received by the Hospital at least two (2) weeks in advance thereof.
- (e) Effective on confirmation by the Employment Insurance Commission of the appropriateness of the Hospital's Supplemental Unemployment Benefit (SUB) Plan, an employee who is on parental leave as provided under this Agreement who has applied for and is in receipt of Employment Insurance parental benefits pursuant to Section 23 of the Employment Insurance Act, shall be paid a supplemental unemployment benefit for a period not exceeding ten (10) weeks. That benefit shall be equivalent to the difference between ninety-three per cent (93%) of the employee's normal weekly earnings and the sum of her/his weekly employment insurance benefits and any other earnings. Receipt by the Hospital of the employee's employment insurance cheque stub will serve as proof that the employee is in receipt of unemployment parental benefits.

The employee's normal weekly earnings shall be determined by multiplying the employee's regular hourly rate on her/his last day worked prior to the commencement of the leave times the employee's normal weekly hours, plus any wage increase or salary increment that the employee would be entitled to if he or she were not on parental leave.

In addition to the foregoing, the Hospital shall pay the employee ninety-three per cent (93%) of her/his normal weekly earnings during the first two (2) week period of the leave while waiting to receive Employment Insurance benefits.

The employee does not have any vested right except to receive payments for the covered unemployment period. The plan provides that payment in respect of guaranteed annual remuneration or in respect of deferred remuneration or severance pay benefits are not reduced or increased by payments received under the plan.

- (f) Credits for service and seniority shall accumulate for a period of up to thirty-five (35) weeks after the parental leave began, if the employee also took pregnancy leave, and thirty-seven (37) weeks after the parental leave began otherwise, while an employee is on parental leave.
- (g) Benefits Continuation

Full-time Employees:

The Hospital will continue to pay its share of the contributions of the subsidized employee benefits, including pension, in which the employee is participating for a period of up to thirty-five (35) weeks after the parental leave began, if the employee also took pregnancy leave, and thirty-seven (37) weeks after the parental leave began otherwise, while the employee is on parental leave.

Part-time Employees:

The Hospital will continue to pay the percentage in lieu of benefits and its share of the pension contribution, in which the employee is participating for a period of up to thirty-five (35) weeks after the parental leave began, if the employee also took pregnancy leave, and thirty-seven (37) weeks after the parental leave began otherwise, while the employee is on parental leave. The Hospital will register these benefits with the employment Benefit Plan.

- (h) Subject to any changes to the employee's status which would have occurred had the employee not been on parental leave, the employee shall be reinstated to her/his former duties, on the same shift in the same department, at the same rate of pay.
- (i) When persons are hired to replace employees who are on approved parental leave, the period of employment of such persons will not exceed the parental leave. The release or discharge of such persons shall not be the subject of a grievance or arbitration.

This clause would not preclude such employees from using the job posting provision under the Collective Agreement and any successful applicant who has completed her/his probation period will be credited with the appropriate seniority.

The Hospital will outline to employees selected to fill such temporary vacancies the circumstances giving rise to the vacancy and the special conditions relating to such employment.

14.08 Education Leave

- (a) If required by the Hospital, an employee shall be entitled to leave of absence with pay and without loss of seniority and benefits to write examinations to upgrade her/his employment qualifications.
- (b) Where employees are required by the Hospital to take courses to upgrade or acquire new employment qualifications, the Hospital shall pay the full costs associated with the courses.
- (c) Subject to operational requirements, the Hospital will make every reasonable effort to grant requests for necessary changes to an employee's schedule to enable attendance at a recognized upgrading course or seminar related to employment with the Hospital.

- (d) Subject to operational requirements, the Hospital will make every reasonable effort to grant requests for an employee to take an educational leave without pay and without loss of seniority of up to twelve (12) months of training related to the employee's employment with the Hospital.
- (e) Subject to operational requirements, a request by an employee to take occasional time off without pay in order to teach at an educational or health care institution shall not be unreasonably denied.

14.09 Pre-paid Leave Plan

Effective September 29, 1993, the Hospital agrees to introduce a pre-paid leave programme, funded solely by the employee subject to the following terms and conditions.

- (a) The plan is available to employees wishing to spread four (4) years salary over a five (5) year period, in accordance with Part LXVIII of the Income Tax Regulations, Section 6801, to enable them to take a one (1) year leave of absence following the four (4) years of salary deferral.
- (b) The employee must make written application to the Hospital at least six (6) months prior to the intended commencement date of the programme, (i.e. the salary deferral portion) stating the intended purpose of the leave.
- (c) The number of employees that may be absent at any one time shall be determined between the parties. The year for purposes of the programme shall be September 1 of one year to August 31 the following year or such other twelve (12) month period as may be agreed upon by the employee, the local Union and the Hospital.
- (d) Where there are more applications than spaces allotted, seniority shall govern.
- (e) During the four (4) years of salary deferral, twenty per cent (20%) of the employee's gross annual earnings will be deducted and held for the employee and will not be accessible to the employee until the year of the leave or upon withdrawal from the plan.
- (f) The manner in which the deferred salary is held shall be at the discretion of the Hospital.
- (g) All deferred salary, plus accrued interest, if any, shall be paid to the employee at the commencement of the leave or in accordance with such other payment schedule as may be agreed upon between the Hospital and the employee.
- (h) All benefits shall be kept whole during the four (4) years of salary deferral. During the year of the leave, seniority will accumulate. Service for the purpose of vacation and salary progression and other benefits will be retained but will not accumulate during the period of leave. The employee shall become responsible for the full payment of premiums for any health and welfare benefits in which the employee is participating. Contributions to the Hospitals of Ontario Pension Plan will be in accordance with the Plan. The employee will not be eligible to participate in the disability income plan during the year of the leave.

- (i) An employee may withdraw from the plan at any time during the deferral portion provided three (3) months notice is given to the Hospital. Deferred salary, plus accrued interest, if any, will be returned to the employee within a reasonable period of time.
- (j) If the employee terminates employment, the deferred salary held by the Hospital plus accrued interest, if any, will be returned to the employee within a reasonable period of time. In case of the employee's death, the funds will be paid to the employee's estate.
- (k) The Hospital will endeavour to find a temporary replacement for the employee as far in advance as practicable. If the Hospital is unable to find a suitable replacement, it may postpone the leave. The Hospital will give the employee as much notice as is reasonably possible. The employee will have the option of remaining in the Plan and rearranging the leave at a mutually agreeable time or of withdrawing from the plan and having the deferred salary, plus accrued interest, if any, paid out to the employee within a reasonable period of time.
- (I) The employee will be reinstated to her/his former position unless the position has been discontinued, in which case the employee shall be given a comparable job.
- (m) Final approval for entry into the pre-paid leave programme will be subject to the employee entering into a formal agreement with the Hospital in order to authorize the Hospital to make the appropriate deductions from the employee's pay. Such agreement will include:
 - (i) A statement that the employee is entering the pre-paid leave programme in accordance with Article 14.09 of the Collective Agreement.
 - (ii) The period of salary deferral and the period for which the leave is requested.
 - (iii) The manner in which the deferred salary is to be held.

The letter of application from the employee to the Hospital to enter the pre-paid leave programme will be appended to and form part of the written agreement.

14.10 An employee shall be granted one (1) day off with pay to attend court for the purpose of receiving her/his citizenship.

14.11 Medical Care and Emergency Leave

An employee is entitled to a leave of absence without pay because of any of the following:

- 1. A personal illness, injury or medical emergency
- 2. The death, illness, injury or medical emergency of an individual described in this Article
- 3. An urgent matter that concerns an individual described in this Article

For the purposes of this Article, the individuals referred to in this Article are:

- the employee's spouse
- a parent, step-parent or foster parent of the employee or the employee's spouse
- a child, step-child or foster child of the employee or the employee's spouse
- a grandparent, step-grandparent, grandchild or step-grandchild of the employee or of the employee's spouse
- the spouse of a child of the employee
- the employee's brother or sister
- a relative of the employee who is dependent on the employee for care or assistance

An employee who wishes to take leave under this section shall advise his or her Manager that he or she will be doing so. If the employee must begin the leave before advising his or her Manager, the employee shall advise his or her Manager of the leave as soon as possible after beginning it.

An employee is entitled to take a total of 10 days' leave under this section each year. If an employee takes any part of a day as leave under this section, the Hospital may deem the employee to have taken one day's leave on that day for the purposes of this Article. The Hospital may require an employee who takes leave under this section to provide evidence reasonable in the circumstances that the employee is entitled to the leave.

Upon the conclusion of an employee's leave under this Article, the Hospital shall reinstate the employee to the position the employee most recently held with the Hospital, if it still exists, or to a comparable position, if it does not.

14.12 Compassionate Care Leave

- (a) Compassionate care leave will be granted to an employee for up to eight (8) weeks within a twenty-six (26) week period to provide care or support to a family member who is at risk of dying within that 26-week period in accordance with section 49.1 of the *Employment Standards Act*.
- (b) An employee who is on compassionate care leave shall continue to accumulate seniority and service.
- (c) Subject to any changes to the employee's status which would have occurred had he or she not been on compassionate care leave, the employee shall be reinstated to his or her former duties, on the same shift in the same department, and at the same rate of pay.

Note: This clause is applicable to full-time and part-time employees. The employee and the Hospital will continue to pay their respective shares of the benefits and pension premiums, where applicable.

ARTICLE 15 - SICK LEAVE, INJURY & DISABILITY

Full-time Employees:

15.01 Amount of Sick Leave

Sick leave shall be granted to employees on the basis of one and one-half (1-1/2) days for every month of service, commencing with the fourth month of service. For the purpose of regulating and administering this clause, all employees' anniversary dates shall be the first day of the fifth month. The fourth month shall be computed on the following basis:

Those persons employed between:

1st day of a month and the 7th day inclusive 8th day of a month and the 14th day inclusive 1 day 15th day of a month and the 21st day inclusive 1/2 day 22nd day of a month and the end of the month 0 days

In any one year where an employee has not had sick leave or only a portion thereof, she/he shall be entitled to an accrual of all the unused portion of sick leave for her/his future benefits. A deduction shall be made from accumulated sick leave of all normal working days (exclusive of holidays) absent for sick leave as defined in 15.05(c).

If an employee is sick for less than one half day, no deduction shall be made from her/his accumulated sick leave. If an employee is sick for more than one half day, but less than a full day, one half day shall be deducted from her/his accumulated sick leave.

Mechanics

Off without pay 1/2 day or less accumulates 1 1/2 days

Off without pay for more than 1/2 day but less

than 8 in any one month accumulates 1 day

Off without pay for 8 continuous calendar days

but less than 15 in any one month accumulates 1/2 day

Off without pay for 15 continuous calendar days 0 days or more in any month, accumulates

Any dispute which may arise concerning an employee's entitlement to any benefits referred to in Article 15.01, may be subject to the grievance and arbitration procedure under the provisions of this Collective Agreement.

15.02 Injury Pay

If an employee is injured on the job and her/his supervisor excuses her/him from further duty for the balance of her/his shift, the employee shall be paid at her or his regular rate of pay for the balance of the shift.

For full-time employees there shall be no deduction from sick leave or other credits.

15.03 Accumulated Sick Leave Provisions

- (a) In the event of the death of an employee, there shall be paid to her/his spouse or estate, an amount equivalent to her/his salary for one-half the number of days standing to her/his credit for sick leave, subject to a limit of an amount not in excess of what she/he would have earned in six (6) months at the rate received by her/him immediately prior to her/his death.
- (b) For the purpose of computing length of service the following shall be included:
 - (1) All time worked with the Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto and any local Boards thereof, for all employees of the Hospital employed prior to January 1, 1974.
 - (2) All time lost on account of absence for reason of illness where the employee was paid for such absence or was considered as being on sick leave without pay.
- (c) Every employee employed prior to June 11, 1981, who has less than five (5) years of service and has become incapable through illness, old age or disability of efficiently discharging her/his duties and is retired shall receive an amount equivalent to her/his salary for one-half the number of days standing to her/his credit for sick leave at the rate received by her/him immediately prior to her/his retirement.
- (d) Every employee who has completed five (5) or more years of service on severance of employment shall receive an amount equivalent to her/his salary for one-half the number of days standing to her/his credit for sick leave, subject to a limit of an amount not in excess of what she/he could have earned in six (6) months at the rate received by her/him immediately prior to her/his severance of employment.
- (e) Every employee who has completed ten (10) or more years of continuous service on severance of employment shall receive an amount equivalent to her/his salary for eighty percent (80%) the number of days standing to her/his credit for sick leave subject to a limit of an amount not in excess of what she/he could have earned in nine (9) months at the regular monthly rate received by her/him immediately prior to her/his severance of employment.

15.04 Sick Leave Administration

(a) Sick Leave Records

A record of all unused sick leave will be kept by the Hospital. Within one (1) month after the close of each calendar year, each employee shall be advised by the Hospital of the amount of accumulated sick leave to her/his credit. Any employee is to be advised on application of the amount of sick leave accrued to her/his credit.

(b) Sick Leave Defined

Sick leave means the period of time an employee is permitted to be absent from work with full pay by virtue of being sick, disabled, exposed to contagious disease, or because of an accident for which compensation is not payable under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act.

15.05 Reporting of Illness (Full-time and Part-time employees)

For each occasion of illness, the employee shall be required to promptly report such illness at least two hours before the start of the shift if the employee is working a day shift and at least four hours before the start of the shift if the employee is working the evening or night shift.

An employee who fails to report an illness shall be considered absent without leave.

The Hospital may require the employee to present documented proof of illness. The Hospital shall pay the full cost of any medical certificate required of an employee.

15.06 Return to Work After Illness (Full-time and Part-time employees)

Return to Work After Illness – More Than Three Days

(a) An employee who has been absent due to illness for more than three (3) days shall report her/his intention to return to work no later than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the start of her/his next scheduled shift.

Return to Work After Illness – Three Days or Less

(b) An employee who has been absent due to illness for three (3) days or less shall report her/his intention to return to work at least twelve (12) hours prior to her/his next scheduled shift.

Failure to Notify the Hospital of a Return from Illness

(c) It is understood that an employee's failure to report their return to work within the time frame under Article 15.06 will not result in the cancellation of an employee who has already been booked to work the shift.

15.07 Payment Pending Determination of W.S.I.B. Claims

An employee who is absent from work as a result of an illness or injury sustained at work and who has been awaiting approval of claim for W.S.I.B benefits for a period longer than one (1) complete pay period may apply to the Hospital for payment equivalent to the lesser of the benefit she/he would receive from the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board if her/his claim was approved, or the benefit to which she/he would be entitled under the sick leave plan. Payment will be provided only if the employee provides evidence of disability satisfactory to the Hospital and a written undertaking satisfactory to the Hospital that any payments will be refunded to the Hospital following final determination of the claim by the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board. If the claim for W.S.I.B benefits is not approved, the monies paid as an advance will be applied towards the benefits to which the employee would be entitled under the sick leave plan. Any payment under this provision will continue for a maximum of fifteen (15) weeks.

15.08 W.S.I.B. and Sick Leave Credits

An employee who has sick leave credits in his/her bank and is prevented from working for the Hospital on account of an occupational illness or accident that is recognized by the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board as compensable within the meaning of the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, the Hospital, on application from the employee will supplement the award made by the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board for loss of wages to the employee by such amount that the award of the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board for loss of wages, together with the supplementation of the Hospital, will equal 100% of the employee's net earnings, to the limit of the employee's accumulated sick leave credits.

15.09 An employee who exhausts sick pay while absent because of illness or injury during an absence of not less than two (2) weeks, may utilize vacation entitlement and/or lieu time owing and such time will be treated as sick leave.

ARTICLE 16 – HOURS OF WORK

Full-time Employees:

16.01 Daily & Weekly Hours of Work (effective January 4, 1999)

The hours of work for employees in these Bargaining Units shall be as follows:

- (a) Office and Clerical employees, exclusive of those working in the Nursing Department, shall work five (5) consecutive seven and half (71/2) hours days exclusive of a luncheon period.
- (b) Switchboard operators shall be on a schedule of seventy-five (75) hours over a two (2) week period exclusive of luncheon periods.
- (c) All employees of these bargaining units shall be required to work seven and half (71/2) hours per shift, excluding a luncheon period, and exclusive of a turnover period of up to fifteen (15) minutes, on a schedule providing seventy-five (75) hours over a two (2) week period. Should such turnover period extend beyond fifteen (15) minutes the entire period shall be considered overtime for the purposes of payment.

16.02 Rest Periods

The Hospital will schedule one fifteen (15) minute rest period for each full half-scheduled shift.

16.03 Additional Rest Periods

When an employee performs authorized overtime work of at least three (3) hours duration, the Hospital will schedule a rest period of fifteen (15) minutes duration.

16.04 Scheduling

- (a) Schedules shall be posted at least two (2) weeks in advance of going into effect and shall cover a period of six (6) weeks.
- (b) Schedules will reflect the status and seniority ranking of each employee based upon the most recently posted seniority list.
- (c) Schedules are to provide at least one (1) weekend off in three (3) weekends. This applies only to office, clerical and switchboard employees.
- (d) Employees shall be allowed the trading of days off and days/shifts with another employee in their classification and unit/department, subject to the approval of the immediate supervisor. Such mutual exchange would not require the Hospital to pay overtime rates of pay.

Such mutual exchange shall be communicated, in writing, to the Supervisor by the employees involved, at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the change.

At the total option of the Supervisor, the forty-eight (48) hour time limit may be waived.

- (e) If an employee is required to work more than seven (7) consecutive regularly scheduled work days, she/he will be paid overtime rates of time and one-half for each day that she/he works in excess of the seven (7) consecutive regularly scheduled work days.
- (f) Overtime and call back time shall be divided equally among those employees normally engaged in those operations and who are qualified to perform the work that is available.
- (g) Where the regular shift of an employee is to be changed, the employee shall be given forty-eight (48) hours notice of such change. If the change necessitates the employee working on an off day, or she/he is not given forty-eight (48) hours notice, overtime as set out in Article 17 shall be paid for the first seven (7) or seven and one-half (7 1/2) hours of work (whichever is applicable) after the shift change.
- (h) All time worked by an employee shall be from the time she/he reports to her/his area of work, to the time she/he leaves her/his area of work at the end of her/his shift.
- (i) There shall be no extended amount of overtime worked in any operation where there are employees on lay-off in the same or similar type of operation and qualified to perform the available work.

Part-time Employees:

16.05 All regular part-time and casual employees (if they are available) must submit their availability at least three (3) weeks in advance of the start of a six (6) week scheduling period. The Hospital will post the schedule on the unit or department no less than two (2) weeks in advance of the start of the six (6) week period. Any availability submitted late will not require the Hospital to adjust the six week schedule based on availability of employees who submitted their availability on time. It is understood that a causal employee that does not submit any availability over four (4) consecutive six (6) week scheduling periods shall be deemed to have resigned.

- 16.06 The following provision designating regular hours on a daily shift and regular daily shifts over the employee schedule determined by the Hospital shall not be construed to be a guarantee of the hours of work to be performed on each shift or during each shift scheduled.
 - (a) All employees of this bargaining unit will be required to work up to seven and one-half (7½) hours per shift, excluding a lunch period and exclusive of a turnover period of up to fifteen (15) minutes. Should such turnover period extend beyond fifteen (15) minutes, the entire period shall be considered overtime for the purposes of payment.
 - (b) With the exception of the Food Services Department which has a three and one-quarter (31/4) hour shift, shifts of less than such hours shall be of a minimum duration of four (4) hours.

With the exception of the Food Services Department It is understood employees will not work more than five (5) days in one (1) week unless under exceptional circumstances.

Note: Employees working the three and one-quarter (31/4) hour shift shall continue to receive a fifteen (15) minute paid rest period.

16.07(A)(1) Commitment (Nursing)

A regular part-time RPN/PSP will be available to work:

- (a) between Monday day shift and Friday night shift a minimum of four (4) shifts on four (4) separate days per pay period, of which two (2) shifts must be Days and two (2) shifts must be either Evenings or Nights in accordance with the employee's rotation; and
- (b) a minimum of three (3) full weekends in six (6), with a full weekend constituting either Day/Evening or Day/Night availability, in accordance with the employee's rotation, on the Saturday and Sunday; and
- (c) either Day/Evening or Day/Night, in accordance with the employee's rotation, on the three days over the Christmas period (December 24, 25 and 26) or the three days over the New Years' period (December 31, January 1 and 2).

A regular part-time RPN/PSP will be required to provide this commitment, as well as her/his availability, upon hire and advise the Hospital of any change hereto.

Note: Any Personal Service Provider hired prior to ratification will be subject to the commitment language, and the past practice of the Hospital, as stated in the Collective Agreement expiring September 27, 2007.

16.07 (A)(2) Commitment (Non-Nursing)

A regular part-time employee will be available to work:

(a) a minimum of four (4) shifts per two-(2) week pay period;

- (b) a minimum of three (3) weekends in six (6) [12:00 a.m. Saturday to 12:00 a.m. Monday] and,
- (c) either Christmas (December 24, 25, 26) or New Year's (including December 31, January 1, 2).

A regular part-time employee will be required to provide this commitment, as well as her/his availability, upon hire and will advise the Hospital of any change hereto.

16.07 (B) Schedules

Once the shift schedule is posted, a request for a shift change must be made in writing to the Supervisor/Manager. Shift changes may be approved subject to the needs of the Hospital and the availability of a qualified substitute and provided that the shift may be filled without payment of any premium pay to any employee. This approval will not be unreasonably withheld.

Once the shift schedule is posted, a request for a shift exchange with another employee must be made in writing and co-signed by the employee willing to make the exchange. Exchanges will be approved provided that the exchange does not result in the payment of any premium pay to any employee.

Such mutual exchange shall be communicated, in writing, to the Supervisor/Manager by the employees involved, at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the change.

At the total option of the Supervisor/Manager, the forty-eight (48) hour time limit may be waived.

- (1) Scheduling (All Employees Except RPN/UST/PSP)
 - (a) Relief shifts which become available will first be offered to regular part-time employees who have not been assigned up to twenty-four (24) hours per week within the pay period on the pre-scheduled schedule. Offers will be made in order of seniority, and depending on availability.

Shifts will next be offered to casual employees in order of seniority, and depending on availability up to twenty-four (24) hours per week per employee.

Any remaining shifts, including relief shifts, will be equally distributed to regular part-time employees in order of seniority, and depending on availability, up to full-time hours per week within the pay period on the schedule. Once regular part-time employees have been scheduled up to full-time hours, based on availability, any remaining relief shifts will then be equally distributed to casual employees in order of seniority, and depending on availability, up to full-time hours per week within the pay period on the schedule.

(b) Vacancies arising in regard to the schedule will first be offered to existing regular part-time employees in the same classification. The most senior applicant will be awarded the position.

The resulting vacancy, if any, will be posted in accordance with Article 11.05.

(2) RPN/UST/PSP Scheduling

Shifts will be assigned in accordance with seniority and stated availability up to twenty-four (24) hours per week per regular part-time employee where availability allows.

Relief shifts which become available will first be offered to regular part-time employees on the unit who have not been assigned up to twenty-four (24) hours per week within the pay period on the pre-scheduled schedule. Offers will be made in order of seniority, and depending on availability.

Relief and casual shifts will next be offered to employees who have identified the unit as their alternate unit. Shifts will be offered in order of seniority, up to three (3) shifts per week, and depending on availability. Remaining shifts will be offered to casual employees who have identified the unit as a unit of choice based on seniority and availability up to a maximum of three (3) shifts per week.

Any remaining shifts, including casual and relief shifts, will be equally distributed to regular part-time employees in order of seniority, and depending on availability, up to full-time hours per week within the pay period on the schedule. Once regular part-time employees have been scheduled up to full-time hours, based on availability, any remaining casual and relief shifts will then be equally distributed to casual employees in order of seniority, and depending on availability, up to full-time hours per week within the pay period on the schedule.

16.08 Where the regular pre-scheduled shift of an employee is to be changed, the employee shall be given twenty-four (24) hours notice of such change. If less than twenty-four (24) hours notice is provided, the employee will be paid at time-and-a-half of the employee's regular straight time hourly rate for all hours worked on the employee's next shift [up to seven and one-half (7½) hours].

16.09 Rest Periods

Part-time employees shall be entitled to a paid rest period of fifteen (15) minutes for each three and three-quarters (3 3/4) hours of work.

16.10 Meal Break

The Hospital will schedule a one-half (½) hour meal break for each employee in mid-shift provided that the shift is at least five (5) hours in duration.

16.11 Wash-Up Time

Full-time and Part-time Employees:

A five (5) minute wash-up time shall be allowed to all employees immediately prior to the end of each day's work.

The provisions of this clause shall not apply to those employees normally working on jobs requiring them to remain on duty during a turnover period, as outlined in Article 16.01 for full-time employees and 16.06(a) for part-time employees.

A ten (10) minute wash-up time shall be allowed to employees in the soiled linen room immediately prior to the end of each day's work.

ARTICLE 17 - PREMIUM PAYMENT

17.01 Definition of Regular Straight Time Rate of Pay

The regular straight time rate of pay is that prescribed in wage Schedule "A" of the Collective Agreement.

17.02 Definition of Overtime

Employees required by the Hospital to work in excess of seven and one-half (7-1/2) hours per shift or seventy-five (75) hours over a two (2) week period shall be paid overtime for all such excess hours.

Full-time Employees:

All time worked on scheduled off days shall be paid for at one and one-half (1 1/2) times the regular straight-time rate of pay for every hour worked.

17.03 Overtime Premium and No Pyramiding

The overtime rate shall be time and one-half the employee's straight time hourly rate.

Overtime premiums will not be duplicated nor pyramided nor shall other premiums be duplicated nor pyramided nor shall the same hours worked be counted as part of the normal work week and also as hours for which the overtime premium is paid.

Where an employee is required to work additional overtime contiguous to an overtime shift within a twenty-four (24) hour period, the employee will be compensated at the rate of double time his or her straight time hourly rate for all additional contiguous overtime hours worked.

17.04 Time Off in Lieu of Overtime

Employees who work overtime will not be required to take time off in regular hours to make up for overtime worked.

Time off in lieu may be taken on a mutually agreed upon basis between the employee and the Hospital, such time off will be the equivalent of the premium rate the employee has earned for working overtime.

The Hospital shall revert to payment of premium rate if time off is not taken within ninety (90) calendar days of the work week in which the overtime was earned or, with the employee's agreement, within 12 months of that work week.

17.05 Reporting Pay

Employees who report for any scheduled shift will be guaranteed at least four (4) hours of work, or if no work is available will be paid at least four (4) hours except when work is not available due to conditions beyond the control of the Hospital. The reporting allowance outlined as herein shall not apply whenever an employee has received prior notice not to report for work.

17.06 Callback

Where employees are called back to work having completed a regular shift and prior to the commencement of their next regular shift, they shall receive a minimum of four (4) hours work or four (4) hours pay at the rate of time and one-half their regular straight-time rate of pay. Where callback is immediately prior to the commencement of their regular shift the callback pay will only apply to the point of commencement of a regular shift at the rate of time and one-half; afterwards, they shall revert back to the regular shift.

17.07 Standby

An employee who is required to remain available for duty on standby, outside the normal working hours for that particular employee, shall receive standby pay in the amount of three dollars (\$3.00) per hour for all hours on standby.

Standby pay shall, however cease where an employee is called into work under Article 17.06 above and works during the period of standby.

17.08 Temporary Transfer

Where an employee is assigned temporarily to perform the duties and assume the responsibilities of a higher paying position in the bargaining unit for a period in excess of one-half of a shift, she/he shall be paid the rate in the higher classification's salary range that is at least seventy-five cents (\$0.75) per hour above his/her current rate but in no circumstances shall the wage rate exceed the maximum for the classification to which he/she is assigned, in which case the maximum rate will be paid from the commencement of the shift on which she/he was assigned the job.

Where a Hospital temporarily assigns an employee to carry out the assigned responsibilities of a classification outside the bargaining unit for a period of half of their scheduled shift or a minimum of three (3) hours, whichever is less, the employee shall receive an allowance of six (6) dollars for each shift from the time of the assignment.

17.09 Shift Premium

Employees shall be paid a shift premium of one dollar and ten cents (\$1.10) per hour for all hours worked where the majority of their scheduled hours fall between fifteen hundred (1500) and seven hundred (0700) hours. The same one dollar and ten cents (\$1.10) per hour will be paid as weekend premium for all hours worked between twenty- four hundred (2400) hours Friday and twenty-four hundred (2400) hours Sunday, or such other forty-eight (48) hour period as may be agreed upon by the parties. Effective September 29, 2012, the premium will increase to one dollar and twenty cents (\$1.20).

17.10 Meal Allowance

Where an employee works for three (3) or more hours of overtime after her/his shift she/he shall be provided with a hot meal or six dollars (\$6.00) if the Hospital is unable to provide the hot meal.

A meal allowance of up to six dollars (\$6.00) will be provided to an employee if required to travel with a patient if away from the Hospital during any of her/his assigned meal periods. The employee will be paid such allowance upon submission of receipts to her/his immediate supervisor.

ARTICLE 18 - HOLIDAYS

18.01 (a) Number of Holidays

There shall be twelve (12) holidays and these holidays are set out as follows:

New Year's Day
Remembrance Day
Civic Holiday
Easter Monday
Boxing Day
Thanksgiving Day
Canada Day
Good Friday
Christmas Day
Labour Day
Queen's Birthday
Family Day

Should the Hospital be required to observe an additional paid holiday as a result of legislation, it is understood that one of the existing holidays recognized by the Hospital shall be established as the legislated holiday after discussion with the Union, so that the Hospital's obligation to provide the number of paid holidays as noted above remains unchanged.

18.01 (b) Part-time Employees

All part-time employees shall receive payment for the eight (8) Statutory and one Civic Holiday as set out below in accordance with article 18.02:

New Year's Day
Good Friday
Labour Day
Thanksgiving Day
Canada Day
Christmas Day
Boxing Day
Queen's Birthday

Civic Holiday

18.02 Definition of Holiday Pay and Qualifiers

Holiday pay, for an employee working the standard hours per day, as set out in provision 16.01 for full-time employees and provision 16.06 for part-time employees, is defined as the amount of straight-time hourly pay exclusive of shift premium which an employee would have received had she/he worked a normal shift on the holiday in question.

In order to qualify for holiday pay or to qualify for a lieu day for any holiday, as set out in Article 18.01 an employee must complete her/his scheduled shift on each of the working

days immediately prior to and following the holiday except where absence on one or both of the said qualifying days is due to a satisfactory reason. In addition, to qualify for statutory holiday pay part-time employees must qualify as per the Employment Standards Act.

An employee who was scheduled to work on a holiday, as set out in Article 18.01 and is absent shall not be entitled to holiday pay or to a lieu day to which she/he would otherwise be entitled unless such absence was due to a satisfactory reason.

An employee who qualifies to receive pay or a lieu day for any holiday will not be entitled, in the event of illness, to receive sick pay in addition to holiday pay or a lieu day in respect of the same day.

Part-time employees who receive holiday pay in accordance with article 18.02 shall also be entitled to the full fourteen (14) per cent in lieu of benefits provided for in Article 20.01.

18.03 Payment for Working on a Holiday

Any employee who is required to work on a designated holiday (see Article 18.01(a)) shall be paid overtime rates of time and one-half.

In addition, a full-time employee who works on a designated holiday shall receive her/his regular holiday pay, or a day off in lieu of holiday pay, at her/his option and as arranged no less than two (2) weeks in advance with her/his supervisor.

18.04 Payment for Working Overtime on a Holiday

Where an employee is required to work authorized overtime in excess of her/his regularly scheduled hours on a paid holiday, such employee shall receive twice her/his regular straight time hourly rate for such authorized overtime.

Full-time Employees:

18.05 Shift employees whose scheduled off days fall on the day a designated holiday is observed shall be paid holiday pay, or granted a lieu day at her/his option and as arranged in advance with her/his supervisor.

Full-time Employees:

- **18.06** When a designated holiday falls within an employee's vacation period, she/he shall be granted an extra day off in lieu of holiday pay.
- **18.07** Where practicable, full-time employees shall be granted lieu days of their choosing.
- **18.08** Subject to staffing requirements:
 - (a) A special schedule will be posted which will provide, on the basis of seniority, time off where requested by an employee on Christmas or New Year's Day.
 - (b) Employees normally required to work on weekends and designated holidays shall be eligible for four (4) consecutive days off, at either Christmas or New Year's.

(c) During the period December 15th to January 15th, the provisions of Article 16.04(b) for full-time employees and 16.07(A)(1)(b) and 16.07 (A)(2)(b) for part-time employees Weekends Off - may be waived.

18.09 Holiday and Sick Pay

An employee who qualifies to receive pay for any holiday will not be entitled, in the event of illness, to receive sick pay in addition to holiday pay in respect of the same day.

ARTICLE 19 - VACATION

Full-time Employees:

19.01 Entitlement, Qualifiers & Calculation of Payment

Effective January 1, 1991, and subject to maintaining any superior conditions concerning entitlement for employees presently enjoying such superior conditions, vacation entitlement shall be as follows:

An employee who has completed less than one (1) year of continuous service as of June 30 shall be entitled to two (2) weeks annual vacation; payment for such vacation shall be prorated in accordance with her/his service.

An employee who has completed one (1) year but less than two (2) years of continuous service as of June 30 shall be entitled to two (2) weeks annual vacation with pay.

An employee who has completed two (2) years but less than five (5) years of continuous service as of June 30 shall be entitled to three (3) weeks annual vacation with pay.

An employee who has completed five (5) years but less than thirteen (13) years of continuous service as of June 30 shall be entitled to four (4) weeks annual vacation with pay.

An employee who has completed thirteen (13) years but less than twenty-two (22) years of continuous service as of June 30 shall be entitled to five (5) weeks annual vacation with pay.

Effective September 29, 2012, an employee who has completed twelve (12) years but less than twenty-one (21) years of continuous service as of June 30 shall be entitled to five (5) weeks annual vacation with pay.

An employee who has completed twenty-one (21) years or more of continuous service as of June 30 shall be entitled to six (6) weeks annual vacation with pay.

Effective September 29, 2012, an employee who has completed twenty (20) years of continuous service as of June 30 shall be entitled to six (6) weeks annual vacation with pay.

An employee who has completed twenty-eight (28) years or more of continuous service as of June 30 shall be entitled to seven (7) weeks annual vacation with pay.

Vacation pay shall be calculated on the basis of the employee's regular straight time rate of pay times their normal weekly hours of work, subject to the application of Article 11.04, Effect of Absence.

19.02 Work During Vacation - Full-time Employees

Should an employee who has commenced her/his scheduled vacation and agrees upon request by the Hospital to return to perform work during the vacation period, the employee shall be paid at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) times her/his basic straight time rate for all hours so worked. To replace the originally scheduled days on which such work was performed, the employee will receive one (1) vacation lieu day off for each day on which she/he has so worked.

19.03 Illness During Vacation – Full-time Employees

Where an employee's scheduled vacation is interrupted due to a serious illness, which commenced prior to and continues into the scheduled vacation period, the period of such illness shall be considered sick leave.

Serious illness is defined as an illness which requires the employee to receive ongoing medical care and/or treatments resulting in either hospitalization or which would confine the employee to their residence or to bed rest for more than three days.

The portion of the employee's vacation which is deemed to be sick leave under the above provision will not be counted against the employee's vacation credits.

Full-time Employees:

19.04 Service for vacation entitlement (outlined in Article 19.01) shall be calculated as of June 30th in each year.

An employee shall become eligible for her/his increased vacation entitlement as outlined in Article 19.01 in the year in which the appropriate anniversary date of employment falls.

Employees who retire on pension will be granted their full vacation entitlement for the year in which the retirement occurs. In the case of death, the same will apply with payment being made to the estate.

Employees who resign or are dismissed will be granted annual vacation on a pro-rata basis based on the percentage of the vacation year that they have worked.

19.05 The Hospital shall provide to its employees a vacation request form by January 31st of each year. Full-time employees shall submit written requests to their supervisor for vacation time off by March 15 in each vacation year. If employees of the same classification request the same vacation time and such requests cannot be accommodated by the Hospital, then seniority shall apply. Vacation requests submitted after March 15th will be considered, if they can be accommodated by the Hospital, on a

first come, first serve basis and vacation requests already approved shall not be overturned as a result of granting such requests. Finalized vacation schedules shall be posted by May 1 of each vacation year and shall remain posted within the Department/Unit throughout the vacation year and revised as necessary.

Note: for the purposes of vacation requests under Article 19.05 the vacation year shall mean May 1st to April 30th.

Full-time Employees:

- 19.06 The vacation year shall extend from January 1st to December 31st.
- **19.07** A full-time employee may, subject to the approval of her/his Department Head, take her/his annual vacation at any time during the vacation year.
- **19.08** An employee may, subject to the approval of her/his Department Head, postpone her/his annual vacation or any part thereof to the following vacation year.
- **19.09** Except in cases of severance of employment, full-time employees will not be paid cash in lieu of vacation time.
- **19.10** Subject to the approval of the Department Head, an employee may elect to take a leave of absence without pay for a period of not more than two (2) weeks for the purpose of an extended vacation.
 - This provision shall not be applied during the calendar months of July and August and during the period from December 15 of one year to January 15 of the following year.
- **19.11** Full-time employees may, upon giving at least twenty-one (21) days notice, receive their vacation pay prior to taking their annual vacation.
- **19.12** Where a full-time employee's anniversary date is after June 30th, the additional week shall be taken after the said anniversary date and will apply only if there is one clear week remaining in the calendar year.

Part-time Employees:

19.13 Entitlement, Qualifiers and Calculation of Payment

- (a) Vacation pay shall be as follows:
- (b) Employees who have completed less then three thousand (3000) hours of service shall be entitled to four percent (4%) vacation pay.
- (c) Six percent (6%) vacation pay after completing three thousand (3,000) hours of service.
- (d) Eight percent (8%) after seventy-five hundred (7,500) hours of service.
- (e) Effective September 29, 2012 Ten percent (10%) after eighteen thousand (18 000) hours of service

- (f) Effective September 29, 2009 Twelve percent (12%) after thirty one thousand and five hundred (31,500) hours of service.
 - Effective September 29, 2012 Twelve percent (12%) after thirty thousand (30,000) hours of service.
- (g) Fourteen percent (14%) after forty-two thousand (42,000) hours of service.
- (h) Employees shall receive vacation pay each pay period based on regular straight time for that pay period.
- (i) Vacation pay shall be calculated on the basis of the employee's regular straight time rate of pay.
- (i) Each employee shall receive vacation pay each pay period.
- **19.14** Part-time employees will be entitled to time off for vacation equivalent to one (1) week time off for each two percent (2%) annual vacation pay. Part-time employees may elect to be paid their vacation pay at the time of taking their vacation.

The Hospital shall provide to its employees a vacation request form by January 31st of each year. Employees shall submit written requests to their supervisor for vacation time off by March 15th in each vacation year. If employees of the same classification request the same vacation time and such requests cannot be accommodated by the Hospital, then seniority shall apply. Vacation requests submitted after March 15th will be considered, if they can be accommodated by the Hospital, on a first come, first serve basis and vacation requests already approved shall not be overturned as a result of granting such requests. Finalized vacation schedules shall be posted by May 1st of each vacation year and shall remain posted within the Department/Unit throughout the vacation year and revised as necessary.

Note: for the purposes of vacation requests under Article 19.14 the vacation year shall mean May 1st to April 30th.

19.15 Where an employee's scheduled vacation is interrupted due to bereavement, the employee shall be entitled to bereavement leave in accordance with Article 14.04.

The portion of the employee's vacation that is deemed to be bereavement leave under the above provisions will not be counted against the employee's vacation credits.

ARTICLE 20 – BENEFITS

20.01 Insured Benefits

Full-time Employees:

The Hospital agrees, during the term of the Collective Agreement, to contribute towards the premium coverage of participating eligible employees in the active employ of the Hospital under the insurance plans set out below subject to their respective terms and conditions including any enrollment requirements:

- (a) The Hospital agrees to pay 100% of the billed premium towards coverage of eligible employees in the active employ of the Hospital under the Blue Cross Semi-Private Plan or comparable coverage with another carrier.
- (b) Non generic drugs will be covered if:
 - (i) there is no generic substitution; or
 - (ii) there are no generic substitutions readily available from the pharmacy of the employee's choice; or
 - (iii) generic drugs are the same cost, or more expensive; or
 - (iv) the employee's doctor stipulates that the generic substitution would not be medically appropriate for the employee or dependent concerned.
- (c) The Hospital agrees to contribute 75% of the billed premium towards coverage of eligible employees in the active employ of the Hospital under the existing Blue Cross Extended Health Care Benefits Plan or comparable coverage with another carrier providing for \$15.00 (single) and \$25.00 (family) deductible, providing the balance of monthly premiums are paid by the employee through payroll deductions. In addition to the standard benefits, coverage will include vision care (maximum \$325.00 per person per 24 months from date of purchase including eye glasses, contact lenses and laser treatment) as well as a hearing aid allowance (maximum \$1,500.00 per person, per three benefit years, not including batteries and repair). In addition to the vision care coverage the bi-annual eye exam will also be covered. Effective September 28, 2013, the maximum for vision care shall increase to \$350.00 per person per 24 months.

Licensed massage therapists, including a maximum of one x-ray examination each benefit year, to a maximum of \$300 per person in a benefit year.

Licensed chiropractors, including a maximum of one x-ray examination each benefit year. The maximum amount payable is \$300 dollars per person in a benefit year. Effective September 29, 2012, the maximum for chiropractic coverage shall increase to \$350.00.

- (d) The Hospital agrees to contribute 100% of the billed premiums towards coverage of eligible employees in the active employ of the Hospital under H.O.O.G.L.I.P. or such other group life insurance plan currently in effect.
- (e) The Hospital agrees to contribute 75% of the billed premiums towards coverage of eligible employees in the active employ of the Hospital under the Blue Cross #9 Dental Plan or comparable coverage with another carrier (based on the current ODA fee schedule as it may be updated from time to time) providing the balance of the monthly premium is paid by the employee through payroll deduction.

Coverage shall also include complete and partial dentures at 50/50 coinsurance to \$1,000 per person maximum annually. Crowns, bridgework, and repairs to same at 50/50 coinsurance to \$1,000 maximum per person annually. Effective September 29, 2012, the maximum coverage for crowns and bridgework shall increase to \$1500.00 maximum per person annually.

(f) The Hospital will provide equivalent coverage to all employees who retire early and have not yet reached age 65 and who are in receipt of the Hospital's pension plan benefits on the same basis as is provided to active employees for semi-private, extended health care and dental benefits. The Hospital will contribute the same portion towards the billed premiums of these benefit plans as is currently contributed by the Hospital to the billed premiums of active employees.

The early-retired employee's share towards the billed premium of the insured benefit plans will be paid to the Hospital.

(g) A copy of all current master policies of the benefits referred to in this Article shall be provided to the Union.

Part-time Employees:

Employees shall receive in lieu of all fringe benefits (being those benefits to an employee paid, in whole or in part by the Hospital, as part of direct compensation or otherwise, save and except salary, vacation pay, call back pay, reporting pay, responsibility allowance and bereavement pay) an amount equal to fourteen percent (14%) of her/his regular straight time hourly rate for all straight time hours paid.

20.02 Long Term Disability (LTD)

Full-time Employees:

The Hospital will pay 75% of the billed premiums towards the provision of a Long Term Disability Plan for eligible employees. Employees shall pay the balance of the billed premiums through payroll deduction. Prior to applying for benefits under the LTD plan, an employee must exhaust all sick leave credits standing to his or her credit in accordance with Article 14 of the Collective Agreement, to a maximum equal to the qualifying period of six (6) months, as determined by the insurer.

All decisions with respect to enrollment and benefit entitlement under the LTD Plan shall be subject to the respective terms and conditions of the insurer's plan, which does not form part of the Collective Agreement. The employer does not act the insurer in respect of LTD benefits and does not bear any responsibility in the event of a dispute between an employee and the insurer. The Employer's obligation is to pay the premiums for the Plan as set out in the paragraph above.

20.03 Change of Carrier – Full-time Employees

It is understood that the Hospital may at any time substitute another carrier for any plan (other than OHIP) provided the benefits conferred thereby are not in total decreased. The Hospital shall notify the Union sixty (60) days in advance of making such a substitution to explain the proposed change and to ascertain the views of the employees. Upon a request by the Union, the Hospital shall provide to the Union, full specifications of the benefit programmes contracted for and in effect for employees covered herein.

20.04 Pension

20.04 (a) (1) Full-time Employees:

All present employees enrolled in the Hospital's pension plan shall maintain their enrolment in the plan subject to its terms and conditions. New employees and employees not yet eligible for membership in the plan shall, as a condition of employment, enrol in the plan when eligible in accordance with its terms and conditions.

20.04 (a) (2) Part-time Employees:

All employees of the Hospital covered by this Agreement may join the Hospitals of Ontario Pension Plan (HOOPP) in accordance with the regulations of the Plan.

Full-time and Part-time Employees:

(b) Prior to issuing notice of lay-off pursuant to Article 11.07(a)(ii) in any classification(s), the Hospital will offer early retirement allowance to a sufficient number of employees eligible for early retirement under H.O.O.P.P. within the classification(s) in order of seniority, to the extent that the maximum number of employees within a classification who elect early retirement is equivalent to the number of employees within the classification(s) who would otherwise receive notice of lay-off under Article 11.07(a)(ii).

An employee who elects an early retirement option shall receive, following completion of the last day of work, a retirement allowance of two (2) weeks salary for each year of service, plus a pro-rated amount for any additional partial year of service, to a maximum ceiling of fifty (52) weeks salary.

(c) Voluntary Exits

If after making offers of early retirement, individual layoff notices are still required, prior to issuing those notices the Hospital will offer a Voluntary Early Exit option in accordance with the following conditions:

- (i) The Hospital will first make offers in the classifications within the department(s) where layoffs would otherwise occur. If more employees than are required are interested, the Hospital will make its decision based on seniority.
- (ii) If insufficient employees in the department affected accept the offer, the Hospital will then extend the offer to employees in the same classification in other departments. If more employees than are required are interested, the Hospital will make its decision based on seniority.
- (iii) in no case will the Hospital approve an employee's request under (i) and (ii) above for a Voluntary Early Exit option, if the employees remaining are not qualified to perform the available work.
- (iv) The number of voluntary early exit options the Hospital approves will not exceed the number of employees in that classification who would otherwise be laid off.

The last day of employment for an employee who accepts a voluntary early exit option will be at the Hospital's discretion and will be no earlier than thirty (30) calendar days immediately following the employee's written acceptance of the offer.

An employee who elects a voluntary early exit option shall receive, following completion of the last day of work, a separation allowance of two (2) weeks' salary for each year of service, to a maximum of fifty-two (52) weeks' pay.

ARTICLE 21 - HEALTH & SAFETY

21.01 Health & Safety Committee

- (a) The Hospital and the Union agree that they mutually desire to maintain standards of safety and health in the Hospital in order to prevent accidents, injury and illness.
- (b) Recognizing its responsibilities under the applicable legislation, the Hospital agrees to accept as a member of its Accident Prevention Health & Safety Committee at least two (2) (one (1) full-time and one (1) part-time) representatives selected or appointed by the Union from amongst bargaining unit employees.
- (c) Such Committee shall identify potential dangers and hazards, institute means of improving health and safety programs and recommend actions to be taken to improve conditions related to safety and health.
- (d) The Hospital agrees to co-operate reasonably in providing necessary information to enable the Committee to fulfil its functions.
- (e) Meetings shall be held every second month or more frequently at the call of the chair if required. The Committee shall maintain minutes of all meetings and make the same available for review.
- (f) Any representative appointed or selected in accordance with (b) hereof shall serve for a term of one (1) calendar year from the date of appointment which may be renewed for further periods of one year. Time off for such representative(s) to attend meetings of the Accident Prevention Health & Safety Committee in accordance with the foregoing shall be granted and time so spent attending such meetings shall be deemed to be work time for which the representative(s) shall be paid by the Hospital at her/his regular or premium rate as may be applicable.
- (g) The Union agrees to endeavour to obtain the full co-operation of its membership in the observation of all safety rules and practices.
- (h) Pregnant employees may request to be transferred from their current duties if, in the professional opinion of the employee's physician, the pregnancy may be at risk. If such a transfer is not feasible, the pregnant employee, if she so requests, will be granted an unpaid leave of absence before commencement of the pregnancy leave referred to in Article 14.06.

(i) Where the Hospital identifies high-risk areas where employees are exposed to Hepatitis B, the Hospital will provide, at no cost to the employees, a Hepatitis B vaccine, or other vaccine.

21.02 Protective Footwear

Effective the first pay in January 2008, and on the first pay in January of each subsequent calendar year, the Hospital will provide seventy-five (75) dollars per calendar year to each employee who is required by the Hospital, as delineated below, to wear slip resistant bottom footwear during the course of her/his duties.

Cleaners (as determined by the Hospital)
Cashier
Dishroom Lead Hand
Food Services Assistant
Kitchen Attendant
Unit Support Technician

Effective the first pay in January 2008, and on the first pay in January of each subsequent calendar year, the Hospital will provide ninety (90) dollars per calendar year to each employee who is required by the Hospital, as delineated below, to wear steel toe and slip resistant bottom safety footwear during the course of her/his duties.

Chef
Assistant Chef
Baker
Cook
Cook's Helper 1
Kitchen Porter
Stores Clerk
Stores Clerk Assistant
Service Assistant

21.03 Workloads

- (a) The parties agree that patient care is enhanced if concerns relating to professional practice, patient acuity, fluctuating Work-Loads and fluctuating staffing are resolved in a timely and effective manner.
- (b) Employees are encouraged to raise their concerns with their immediate supervisor. In the event that the workload concerns is not resolved to the employee's satisfaction, the employee, or group of employees, may submit their concerns to either the Joint Health and Safety Committee (as constituted under the Collective Agreement) or the Labour management Committee (as constituted under Article 8.02) through their union representative in a format to be determined by the respective committee.
- (c) In the event that an employee or group of employees, covered under the Regulated Health Professions Act (RHPA), are assigned a work-load which is inconsistent with proper patient care, they shall express their concerns to their supervisor. The employee shall complete a "Workload Review Form" which shall be provided to the

supervisor and to the Union. The Work-Load Review Form will be attached as an Appendix to the Collective Agreement.

ARTICLE 22 - COMPENSATION

22.01 Job Classification

When a new classification (which is covered by the terms of this Collective Agreement) is established by the Hospital, the Hospital shall determine the rate of pay for such new classification and notify the local Union of the same. If the local Union challenges the rate, it shall have the right to request a meeting with the Hospital to endeavour to negotiate a mutually satisfactory rate. Such request will be made within ten (10) days after the receipt of notice from the Hospital of such new occupational classification and rate. Any change mutually agreed to resulting from such meeting shall be retroactive to the date that notice of the new rate was given the Hospital. If the parties are unable to agree, the dispute concerning the new rate may be submitted to arbitration as provided in the Agreement within fifteen (15) days of such meeting. The decision of the board of arbitration (or arbitrator as the case may be) shall be based on the relationship established by comparison with the rates for other classifications in the bargaining unit having regard to the requirements of such classification. When the Hospital makes a substantial change in the job content of an existing classification which in reality causes such classification to become a new classification, the Hospital agrees to meet with the Union if requested to permit the Union to make representation with respect to the appropriate rate of pay.

If the matter is not resolved following the meeting with the Union the matter may be referred to Arbitration as provided in the agreement within fifteen (15) days of such meeting. The decision of the Board of Arbitration (or arbitrator as the case may be) shall be based on the relationship established by comparison with the rates for other classifications in the bargaining unit having regard to the requirements of such classifications.

The parties further agree that any change mutually agreed to or awarded as a result of arbitration shall be retroactive only to the date that the Union raised the issue with the Hospital.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if as a result of compensable illness or injury covered by W.S.I.B. an employee is unable to carry out the regular functions of his/her position, the Hospital may, subject to its operational requirements, establish a special classification and salary in an endeavour to provide the employee with an opportunity of continued employment. This provision shall not be construed as a guarantee that such special classification(s) will be made available or continued.

22.02 Promotion to a Higher Classification

An employee who is promoted to a higher rated classification within the bargaining unit will be placed in the range of the higher rated classification so that she/he shall receive no less an increase in wage rate than the equivalent of one step in the wage rate of her/his previous classification (provided that she/he does not exceed the wage rate of the classification to which she/he has been promoted).

22.03 Wage Rates

The wage rates in effect for the duration of this Collective Agreement shall be as set forth in Schedule "A" attached to and forming part of this Collective Agreement.

22.04 Pay Day

Full-time employees:

Employees will be paid on a bi-weekly basis. On each pay day each employee shall be provided with an itemized statement of her/his wages, vacation bank, sick bank, overtime and bonuses and deductions.

Part-time employees:

Employees will be paid on a bi-weekly basis. On each pay day, each employee shall be provided with an itemized statement of her/his wages, overtime, vacation pay, total accrued aggregate hours paid and bonuses and deductions. Accrued aggregate hours will be included beginning January 23, 1997.

22.05 All employees will be paid on a bi-weekly basis using direct deposit to the employee's account.

Where a pay error has occurred which reduces the employee's wages in excess of twenty-five dollars (\$25) an employee shall be able to obtain on request, the amount owing to her/him prior to the next payday.

ARTICLE 23 - GENERAL

23.01 Bulletin Boards

The Hospital will provide two (2) designated Bulletin Boards for the exclusive use of the Union for posting notices. All notices posted shall be signed by an officer of the Union and will be submitted to the Director, Human Resources or her/his designate for approval before posting.

23.02 Uniforms

The Hospital shall furnish, maintain and launder without charge such uniforms from time to time, required by the Hospital to be worn by the employees, except that employees in the classification of Registered Practical Nurse, Occupational Therapy Assistant, Therapy Attendant, Physiotherapy Assistant, Occupational Therapy/Physiotherapy Assistant, Diet Clerk, Health Care Aid, Diet Technician and Personal Service Provider shall furnish their own uniforms and shall receive eighty-four (84) dollars per year, paid on the first pay in January of each year, for replacement, maintenance and laundering. Employees in the classification of Administrative Clerk assigned to a patient unit shall receive two dollars (\$2.00) per month to launder and maintain the uniforms that the Hospital shall furnish.

The Hospital shall provide protective clothing for dirty linen room workers.

- 23.03 A copy of this Collective Agreement in a mutually agreeable form shall be issued by the Hospital to each employee. The cost of such copies will be shared equally by the Hospital and the Union.
- 23.04 All correspondence between the parties arising out of this Agreement or incidental thereto shall pass to and from the Director, Human Resources of the Hospital or her/his designate.

All correspondence directed to CUPE Local 79 other than that related to the Grievance and Arbitration process, or as otherwise stipulated in this Collective Agreement, shall be in writing and addressed to the President, CUPE Local 79.

- **23.05** (a) Full Time employees: Registered Practical Nurses are required to present to the unit Program Director, by January 31 of each year, their current Certificates of Competence or proof of application thereof.
 - **(b) Part- time employees:** Registered Practical Nurses are required to present to the unit Program Director, by December 31 of each year, their current Certificates of Competence or proof of application thereof.

23.06 Disabled Employee's Preference

An employee unable to perform his/her normal duties and requiring accommodation by the Hospital shall inform the employer of such request. Any request shall be supported by medical documentation satisfactory to the Hospital. Assignment to alternate duties or any other accommodation will be undertaken by the employer in compliance with the Human Rights Code and/or the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act (WSIA).

23.07 Wherever the Collective Agreement refers to "PSP" (Personal Service Provider), it is understood that Registered Practical Nurse (RPN) is included unless the parties agree otherwise.

ARTICLE 24 - FISCAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

- (a) The Union's representative(s) will be included in the consultation and planning process from the early phases of the budget planning process, through representation on the Fiscal Advisory Committee, to its final stages of completion, to assist the Hospital in minimizing layoffs or job loss, and in developing labour adjustment strategies where necessary.
- (b) Where the Hospital experiences unforeseen circumstances such that will necessitate changes to its budgetary plans which have been approved by the Ministry of Health, or the Local Health Integration Network, the Hospital agrees that revisions to the budget will be carried out in consultation with the Union.
- (c) In furtherance of the foregoing, the Hospital agrees to provide to the Union in a timely way any financial and staffing information pertinent to the budget, or to any other restructuring plan that would affect the Union's Members.

(d) It is understood that Employee time spent at meetings with the Employer in pursuance of the above shall be deemed to be work time for which the Employee shall be paid by the Hospital at his or her regular or premium rate as may be applicable.

ARTICLE 25 – DURATION

25.01 Term

This Agreement shall continue in force and effect from September 29, 2009 to September 28, 2013. Should the parties not bargain centrally, either party to this Agreement may at any time during the last three (3) months of the Agreement, present to the other in writing, proposed terms of a new or further Agreement and/or amendments to this Agreement. A conference shall be held within twenty (20) days from the first giving of notice by either party at which time the parties shall commence negotiations on the proposed amendments and/or the terms of a new Agreement. Failing agreement by September 28, 2013, this Agreement and all its terms shall continue in force until a new Agreement is executed.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, in the event the parties to this Agreement agree to negotiate for its renewal through the process of central bargaining, either party to this Agreement may give notice to the other party of its desire to bargain for amendments on local matters proposed for incorporation in the renewal of this Agreement and negotiations on local matters shall take place during the period from one hundred and twenty (120) to sixty (60) days prior to the termination date of this Agreement. Negotiations on central matters shall take place during the period commencing forty-five (45) days prior to the termination date of this Agreement.

It is understood and agreed that "local matters" means, those matters which have been determined by mutual agreement between the central negotiating committees respectively representing each of the parties to this Agreement as being subjects for local bargaining directly between the parties to this Agreement. It is also agreed that local bargaining shall be subject to such procedures that may be determined by mutual agreements between the central negotiating committees referred to above. For such purposes, it is further understood that the central negotiating committees will meet during the sixth (6th) month prior to the month of termination of this Agreement to convey the intentions of their principals as to possible participation in central negotiations, if any, and the conditions for such central bargaining.

Dated at Toronto, Ontario, this 15th day of July, 2011

For the Hospital:

_____ Judy Bonham ______ Ann Dembinski ______
___ Karen Foster _____ Tim Maquire ______
___ Larry Florou _____ Nancy Murphy ______
___ Van Nguyen ______
___ Helen Manning _____

SIGNATURES ON FILE

D	3.0%					Special Adjustments					
Position	29-Sep-08					01-Jan-09					
Effective September 1, 2005	Start 20.022	3 Months 20,464	12 Months 21 143			-					
Accounting Clerk Effective December 12, 2005	Start	3 Months	12 Months			1					
Accounts Payable Clerk	20.022	20.464	21.143		-						
Effective November 30, 2009	20.022	20,404	21.143	-	_	-					
Accounts Payable Clerk, Senior											
Effective May 1, 2005	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months		-					
ACWC Technologist	21.079		23.660	24.977			_				
ACVVC Technologist	Start	3 Months	12 Months	24.311	_	_	_	_			
A destrict tention Clark											
Administrative Clerk	20.022	20.464		27 Months		-					
A-sistant Chaf	Start 20,366	3 Months	15 Months			-					
Assistant Chef		20.682	21 020	21.869	_	_					
D-1	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months		_					
Baker	20.366	-0.1101		21.869	_						
	Start	3 Months	12 Months	-		-					
Business Machine Operator	19.379	19.694	20.178	22.11	_		_	-			
Effective May 27, 2005	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months							
Buyer	22.227	23.521	25.520	26.532	_	-					
	Start	3 Months									
Cashier	19 315	20.076									
OL - 6	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months							
Chef	21.711	22.113	22.533	23.457				-			
	Start	3 Months	-					1			
Cleaner	19.336	20.076									
	Start	3 Months									
Cleaner I	19.272	19.967									
	Start	3 Months									
Cleaner II	19 336	19 967	2								
	Start	3 Months	12 Months					2.0			
Clerk Intermediate	19.694	20.006	20.492								
	Start	3 Months	12 Months								
Clerk Senior	20.022	20.464									
Effective January 1, 2004	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months							
Clinical Assistant	21.809	23.078	25.040	26.032							
Effective May 1, 2005	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months							
Clinical Library Technician	21.079	22 171	23.660	24.977							
Effective January 1, 2004	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months							
Communicative Disorders Assistant	22.901	24.171	26.132	27.125		5 16					
Effective August 19. 2004	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months							
Community Relations Assistant	20.033	20.453	20 876	21.619		1					
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months							
Cook	19.672	19 926	20.262	21.143							
	Start	3 Months									
Cook's Helper I	19.336	20.157	17								
	Start	3 Months									
Cook's Helper II	19.315	20.076	0								
	Start	3 Months	12 Months								
Diet Clerk	19.946	20,178	21.143			3 - 0					
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months				
Diet Technician	21.788	22.842	24.375		22.223	23.299	24.863				
	Start	3 Months									
Dishroom Lead Hand	19.293		100			0.00					
		3 Months									
Floor Stripper	19.355		200								
	Start	3 Months									
Food Service Assistant	19.293		2 2								
	Start	3 Months	100 m	1							
God Supervisor Junior	18.914					0.5					
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months							
Food Supervisor Senior	20 620	20.893	21.211	21.440							
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months		7	1				
Health Care Aide	19.187	19.610	19.967	20.492							
	Start	3 Months	10.001				1				
lousekeeping Attendant	19.228	20.076				3 5		-			
Effective April 1, 2013	1	25.5.0									
unior Buyer						0 0					
	Start	3 Months	12 Months	1		-	1				
unlor Clerk	19.377	19.610	19.925								
	Start	3 Months	1.020	1							
Sitchen Attendani	19.293	20.076									
	Start	3 Months		-	- 1	-					
Stichen Porter	19.104	20.076									
and to the	Start	3 Months		-							
ead Hand, Environmental Services	19.557	20.568									
.eas mand, Environmental Services						-					
In a Astandard	Start	3 Months		i							
inen Atlendant	19.650	20.366	40.84: 11	-		- 1					
	Start	3 Months	12 Months					_			
Nursery Assistant	19.705	20.084	21,440								
	Start	3 Months	12 Months								
Nursery Attendant	17.420	17.588	17.884								

Wage Schedule 'A' Bridgepoint Hospital CUPE Service

	3.0%					Special Adjustments				
Position	29-Sep-08				01-Jan-09					
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months						
Office Coordinator	20.032	20 453	20 876	21.619						
2.	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months		(A)				
OTA or PTA	20.032	20.453	20.876	22.491						
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months		
OTA/PTA (dual certification)	21 733	22.153	22.576	25.468	22.167	22.596	23.027	25.97		
Effective September 29, 2009	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months		W2				
Patient Care Assistant	19.187	19.610	19.967	21.143						
	Start	3 Months	12 Months							
Patient Information Clerk	20.366	20.682	21.869							
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months		D 0				
Personal Service Provider	19.672	19.926	20.262	21.143						
Effective September 29, 2002	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months						
Program Assistant	20.032	20.453	20.876	21 619				1		
Effective May 1, 2005	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months						
Purchasing Analyst	21.169		24.305	25.268						
(Non Patient Care)	Start	12 Months	24 Months			7				
Registered Practical Nurse	21,361	22 395	24.375			7 J				
(Direct Patient Care)	Start	12 Months	24 Months							
Registered Practical Nurse	25 578		26.428							
Effective April 1, 2013	01		100							
Senior Buyer										
Effective January 1, 2004	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months			-			
Senior Program Assistant	21,716	22 841	24.375	25.732						
	Start	3 Months								
Service Assistant	19.336	20 076								
	Start	3 Months	1							
Sewing Room Attendant	19.420	20 135								
	Start	3 Months	12 Months							
Stores Clerk	21 145	21 544	22.157							
	Start	3 Months	12 Months							
Stores Clerk Assistant	19.336	19.672	20,423							
Otorico Cicrim Isoliciani	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months			
Switchboard Operator	19 686	20.022	20.423		20.080	20 423	20.831			
omionedare operator	Start	3 Months				20 120	201001			
Therapy Aide	19 651	20,533								
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months						
Therapy Attendant	19 096	19.518	19 876	20 401						
Thorapy Attendant	Start	3 Months								
Therapy Porter	19.179	20.076								
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months			-			
Unit Support Technician	19 187	19.610	19.967	20 492				7 7		
Effective September 29, 2003	Start	12 Months	24 Months	27 Months						
Volunteer Resources Assistant	21 716	22.841	24.375	25 732		2 7				
Volunteer Resources Assistant	Start	3 Months	12 Months	20.02						
Ward Clerk	19.187	19 483	19.925							
Tara Sam	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months		-	_			
X-Ray Assistant	19.019	19,440	19 799	20.556						

Pacition	2% 29-Sep-09				2% 29-Sep-10					
Position Effective September 1, 2005	29-Sep-09 Start 3 Months 12 Months				29-Sep-10 Start 3 Months 12 Months					
	20 423	3 Months 20.874	12 Months 21.566		20.831	3 Months 21.291	21.997			
Accounting Clerk Effective December 12, 2005	Start	3 Months	12 Months	$\overline{}$	Start	3 Months	12 Months			
Accounts Payable Clerk	20.423	20.874	21.566		20.831	21 291	21 997			
Effective November 30, 2009	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months			
					22.320		24.439			
Accounts Payable Clerk, Senior	21.882	22 314	23.960	36 Months		22.760		36 Months		
Effective May 1. 2005	Start	12 Months	24 Months		Start	12 Months	24 Months			
ACWC Technologist	21.501	22.615	24.133	25.477	21 931	23.067	24.616	25.986		
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months			
Administrative Clerk	20 423	20 874	21.566		20.831	21 291	21.997			
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months		
Assistant Chel	20.774	21.096	21 440	22 307	21.189	21.518	21.869	22 753		
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months		
Baker	20.774	21 096	21.440	22.307	21.189	21.518	21 869	22.753		
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months			
Business Machine Operator	19.766	20.088	20.582		20.162	20.489	20.993			
Effective May 27. 2005	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months		
Buyer	22 672	23.991	26.031	27.062	23.125	24.471	26.551	27.604		
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months	1			
Cashier	19.701	20.478			20.095	20.887	2			
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months		
Chef	22.146	22.555	22,984	23,926	22.589	23 006	23.444	24.404		
-	Start	3 Months		1	Start	3 Months				
Clearjer	19.723	20 478			20.117	20.887				
	Start	3 Months		1	Start	3 Months	15			
Cleaner I	19,658	20.367			20.051	20.774				
Oldandi I	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months	-			
Cleaner II	19.723	3 Months 20.367			20117	20.774				
Cleaner II			40.04	_			40.00			
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months			
Clerk Intermediate	20.088	20.406	20.902		20.489	20.814	21.320			
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months			
Clerk Senior	20 423	20.874	21.323		20.631	21.291	21.749			
Effective January 1, 2004	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months		
Clinical Assistant	22 245	23.540	25.540	26.553	22.690	24.010	26.051	27.084		
Effective May 1, 2005	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months		
Clinical Library Technician	21.501	22 615	24.133	25,477	21.931	23.067	24.616	25.986		
Effective January 1, 2004	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months		
Communicative Disorders Assistant	23.359	24.654	26.655	27.667	23.827	25.147	27.188	28.221		
Effective August 19, 2004	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months		
Community Relations Assistant	20.433	20.862	21.294	22.051	20.842	21.279	21.720	22.493		
Contracting regulation regulation	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months		
Cook	20 066	20.324	20.667	21,566	20.467	20.731	21.081	21.997		
COOR	Start	3 Months	20.001	21,000	Start	3 Months	21.001	21.007		
Cook's Hole on I	19.723	20.560			20.117	20.971	_			
Cook's Helper I					Start					
Cashin Mahaar II	Start	3 Months				3 Months				
Cook's Helper II	19.701	20 478	10.01	_	20.095	20 887	40.04	_		
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months			
Diet Clerk	20.345	20.582	21.566	_	20.752	20.993	21.997			
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months			
Diet Technician	22.667	23.765	25.360		23.121	24.240	25 867			
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months				
Dishroom Lead Hand	19.679	20.678			20.073	21 091				
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months				
Floor Stripper	19.742	20.774		-	20,137	21.189				
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months	17			
Food Service Assistant	19.679	20 478			20.073	20.887				
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months				
Food Supervisor Junior	19.293	19.873			19.679	20 270				
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months		
Food Supervisor Senior	21.032	21.311	21.635	21.869	21 453	21.737	22.068	22.307		
- 13 Cop a	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months		
Health Care Aide	19.571	20.002	20.367	20.902	19.962	20.402	20.774	21 3 20		
, realth care Alde	Start	3 Months	20.307	20.902	Start	3 Months	20.114	21 320		
Housekeeping Attendant	19,613	20.478			20.005	20.887				
	19,013	20.478			20.005	20.007				
Effective April 1 2013										
Junior Buyer	Charl	2 84	40 84		Chart	2 84	40 84			
1 011	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months			
Junior Clerk	19.765	20 002	20.323	- 1	20.160	20.402	20.730			
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months				
Kitchen Attendant	19.679	20.478			20.073	20.887	_			
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months				
Kitchen Porter	19.486	20.478			19 876	20.887				
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months				
Lead Hand, Environmental Services	19.948	20.979			20.347	21.399	- 0			
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months				
Linen Attendant	20.043	20.774			20.444	21.189	- W			
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months			
	20.099	20.486	21.869		20.5/01	20.895	22.307			
Nursery Assistant										
Nursery Assistant	Start	3 Months	12 Months	1	Start	3 Months	12 Months			

Wage Schedule 'A' Bridgepoint Hospital CUPE Service

	7.7	2%							
Position	29-Sep-09				29-Sep-10				
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	
Office Coordinator	20.433	20.862	21 293	22.051	20.842	21 279	21.719	22.49	
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	
OTA or PTA	20.433	20.862	21.293	22.940	20.842	21.279	21.719	23.39	
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	
OTA/PTA (dual certification)	22.610	23.048	23.488	26.497	23.063	23.509	23.957	27.020	
Effective September 29, 2009	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	
Patient Care Assistant	19.571	20.002	20.366	21.566	19 962	20.402	20.774	21.99	
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months		
Patient Information Clerk	20,774	21.096	22 307		21.189	21,518	22.753		
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	
Personal Service Provider	20,066	20324	20.667	21 566	20.467	20.731	21.081	21.99	
Effective September 29, 2002	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	
Program Assistant	20 433	20.862	21,294	22.051	20.842	21,279	21.720	22493	
Effective May 1, 2005	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	
Purchasing Analyst	21,592	22.849	24.791	25.774	22.024	23.306	25 287	26.289	
(Non Patient Care)	Start	12 Months	24 Months	-	Start	12 Months	24 Months		
Registered Practical Nurse	21.789	22 843	24 863		22.224	23 300	25,360		
(Direct Patient Care)	Start	12 Months	24 Months		Start	12 Months	24 Months		
Registered Practical Nurse	26.090	26 498	26,957		26.611	27.028	27 496		
Effective April 1, 2013	20.030	20 430	20.557		20.011	27.020	27 700		
Senior Buyer	1								
Effective January 1, 2004	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	
Senior Program Assistant	22,151	23.298	24.862	26.247	22,594	23.764	25.360	26.772	
Senior Program Assistant	Start	3 Months	24.002	20.247	Start	3 Months	20.500	20.772	
Service Assistant	19.723	20.478	_		20,117	20.887			
Service Assistant	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months			
Sewing Room Attendant	19 809	20.538			20,205	20.949			
Sewind Room Attendant	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months		
Stores Clerk	21.568	21.975	22.600		22,000	22.415	23.052		
Stores Clerk	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months	_	
Charac Clark Assistant	19,723	20.066	20.831		20,117	20 467	21,248		
Stores Clerk Assistant	Start		12 Months		Start Start	3 Months	12 Months		
Sultable and Oncortes	20 482	3 Months	12 Months 21.248		20.891	21.248	12 MONTHS 21,673		
Switchboard Operator		20.831	21.240			3 Months	21.0/3		
m1 4.1.	Start	3 Months			Start 20.445	21.363			
Therapy Aide	20 044	20.944	45 Martha	27 Months			4F Mantha	27 Mantha	
	Start	3 Months	15 Months		Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	
Therapy Attendant	19.478	19.908	20.273	20.809	19.868	20.307	20 679	21 226	
***	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months		_	
Therapy Porter	19 563	20.478		22.11	19.954	20.887		07.04	
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	
Unit Support Technician	19.571	20.002	20.367	20.902	19.962	20.402	20.774	21 320	
Effective September 29, 2003	Start	12 Months	24 Months	27 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	27 Months	
Volunteer Resources Assistant	22.151	23.298	24.862	26.247	22.594	23.764	25 360	26.772	
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months		
Ward Clerk	19.571	19.873	20 323		19.962	20,270	20.730	-	
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	
X-Ray Assistant	19.399	19 829	20.195	20.967	19.787	20.226	20.599	21.386	

Position	2% 29-Sep-11			2% 29-Sep-12				
Effective September 1, 2005	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months	
Accounting Clerk	21.248	21 717	22.437		21.673	22.151	22.886	
Effective December 12, 2005	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months	
Accounts Pavable Clerk	21 248	21.717	22.437		21.673	22 151	22.886	
Effective November 30, 2009	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months	
	22,766	23.215	24.928		23.221	23.680	25.427	
Accounts Payable Clerk, Senior				20 Martha				20.1441-
Effective May 1, 2005	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
ACWC Technologist	22.369	23.528	25.108	26.506	22.817	23.999	25.610	27 03
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months	
Administrative Clerk	21.248	21 717	22.437		21.673	22.151	22.886	
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months
Assistant Chef	21.613	21.948	22 307	23 208	22.045	22.387	22.753	23 67
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months
Baker	21.613	21 948	22.307	23.208	22.045	22.387	22.753	23 67
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months	
Business Machine Operator	20.565	20.899	21.413		20.976	21 317	21.841	
Effective May 27, 2005	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
Buyer	23.588	24 961	27.082	28.156	24.060	25 460	27.624	28.71
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months		
Ceshier	20.497	21 305	-		20 907	21.731		
COSTITUTION	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months
Chef	23 040	23.466	23,912	24.893	23.501	23 936	24.391	25.39
Olici	Start	3 Months	23,312	24.093	Start	3 Months	24.391	20.39
Cloaner								
Cleaner	20.520	21.305			20.930	21 731		
	Start	3 Months		-	Start	3 Months		
Cleaner I	20.452	21 189			20.861	21.613		
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months		
Cleaner II	20.520	21.189	A		20.930	21.613		
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months	
Clerk Intermediate	20.899	21.231	21.746		21.317	21.655	22,181	
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months	
Clerk Senior	21.248	21.717	22.184		21.673	22 151	22.628	
Effective January 1 2004	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
Clinical Assistant	23.144	24.491	26,572	27.625	23.606	24.980	27.104	28.17
Effective May 1, 2005	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
	22 369					23.999		
Clinical Library Technician		23.528	25,108	26.506	22.817		25,610	27.03
Effective January 1, 2004	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
Communicative Disorders Assistant	24.303	25.650	27,732	28.785	24.789	26.163	28 286	29 36
Effective August 19, 2004	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
Community Relations Assistant	21.259	21.705	22.154	22.942	21.684	22.139	22.597	23.40
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months
Cook	20.876	21 145	21.502	22.437	21.294	21 568	21.932	22 886
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months		
Cook's Helper I	20 520	21.390			20.930	21.818		
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months		
Cook's Helper II	20.497	21 305	Name of the last		20,907	21.731		
OCOK 3 TICIDEI II	Start	3 Months	12 Months			3 Months	12 Months	
Di-t Olt					Start 21.590			
Diet Clerk	21.167	21 413	22.437			21.841	22.886	
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months	-
Diet Technician	23.583	24.725	26.385		24 055	25.220	26.913	
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months		
Dishroom Lead Hand	20.474	21.513			20.884	21.943		
	Start	3 Months	Y	2000	Start	3 Months		
Floor Stripper	20.540	21.613			20.950	22.045		
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months		
Food Service Assistant	20.474	21.305			20.884	21.731		
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months		
Food Supervisor Junior	20.072	20.675			20.474	21.089		
T.	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months
Food Supervisor Senior	21.882	22.172	22.509	22.753	22.319	22.616	22.959	23.208
SSS SUPER VICTOR SERVICE	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months
Health Care Aide	20.361			21 746	20.768			
iceiii odis vide		20.810	21.189	21/40		21.226	21 613	22 18
University of the Attendant	Start 20.405	3 Months			Start 20.813	3 Months		
Housekeeping Attendant	∠0.405	21,305				21.731	04.84: 11	20.14
Effective April 1, 2013		-			Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
lunior Buyer	6:	4.11	40.11		21.654	22.914	24.862	25.84
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months	
Junior Clerk	20.564	20 810	21.144		20.975	21 226	21.567	
	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months		
Kitchen Attendant	20 474	21.305			20.884	21 731		
	Start	3 Months	1		Start	3 Months		
Kitchen Porter	20.273	21 305			20 679	21.731		9
	Start	3 Months	0-	1	Start	3 Months	-	
ead Hand, Environmental Services	20.754	21.827			21.169	22.263		
	Start	3 Months	i	1	Start	3 Months		
Linen Attendant	20.853	21.613	à .		21.270	22.045		
	Start	3 Months	12 Months	_	Start	3 Months	12 Months	
		21.313	22 753	-	21.329	21.739		
Nurcent Accietant			// /53		Z1.3Z8	41./39	23.208	
Nursery Assistant	20.911 Start	3 Months	12 Months	_	Start	3 Months	12 Months	

Wage Schedule 'A' Bridgepoint Hospital CUPE Service

	2%				2%			
Position		29-S	ep-11		29-Sep-12			
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months
Office Coordinator	21.259	21.705	22.153	22.942	21.684	22.139	22.597	2340
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months
OTA or PTA	21,259	21.705	22.153	23.867	21.684	22 139	22.597	24.345
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months
OTAPTA (dual certification)	23.524		24.436	27.567	23,994	24,459	24,925	28.118
Effective September 29, 2009	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months
Patient Care Assistant	20 361	20.810		22.437	20.769	21.226	21,613	22.886
	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months	
Patient Information Clerk	21,613	21,948	23.208		22.045	22 387	23672	
	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months
Personal Service Provider	20.876	21.145	21.502	22.437	21.294	21.568	21.932	22.886
Effective September 29, 2002	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months
Program Assistant	21,259	21.705	22.154	22.942	21.684	22.139	22,597	23.401
Effective May 1, 2005	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
Purchasing Analyst	22,465	23.772	25.793	26.815	22.914	24.247	26 308	27 351
(Non Patient Care)	Start	12 Months	24 Months	20.0.0	Start	12 Months	24 Months	2. 00.
Registered Practical Nurse	22.669	23.766	25 867		23.122	24.241	26.385	
(Direct Patient Care)	Start	12 Months	24 Months		Start	12 Months	24 Months	
Registered Practical Nurse	27.144	27.568	28.046		27.686	28,119	28,607	
Effective April 1, 2013	27,111	27.000	20.010		Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
Senior Buyer					25 744	27.242	29.558	30.729
Effective January 1, 2004	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
Senior Program Assistant	23 046	24,239	25 867	27.307	23.506	24.724	26.384	27.853
Sullor Frequent Assistant	Start	3 Months	20 007	27.007	Start	3 Months	20.001	27.000
Service Assistant	20.520	21.305			20.930	21 731		
Service Assistant	Start	3 Months			Start	3 Months		
Sawing Room Altendant	20.609	21.368			21 021	21.795		
Obming Moon Allendant	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months	
Stores Clerk	22.440	22.863	23.513		22 889	23.320	23.983	
Oldres dielk	Start	3 Months	12 Months	-	Start	3 Months	12 Months	
Štores Clerk Assistant	20.520	20.876	21.673		20 930	21 294	22.106	
Stores Cierk Assistant	Start	3 Months	12 Months		Start	3 Months	12 Months	
Switchboard Operator	21.309	21.673	22.106		21.735	22.107	22.548	
Switchboard Operator	Start	3 Months	22.100		Start	3 Months	22.540	_
Therapy Aide	20.854	21 790			21 271	22.226		
Therapy Aide	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months
Therapy Attendant	20 265	20.713	21.092	21.650	20.671	21.127	21 514	22 083
Therapy Attendant	Start	3 Months	21.032	21.000	Start	3 Months	21014	22 000
Therapy Porter	20.353	21.305			20,760	21 731		
Therapy Forter	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months
Unit Support Technician	20.361	20.810	21.189	21.746	20,768	21.226	21 613	22 181
Effective September 29, 2003	Start	12 Months	24 Months	27 Months	Start	12 Months	24 Months	27 Months
Volunteer Resources Assistant	23.046	24.239	24 MONUIS 25.867	27 MONTHS 27.307	23.506	24.724	26.384	27 WORKINS 27.853
Volunteer Resources Assistant	Start	3 Months	12 Months	21.307	Start	3 Months	12 Months	21.000
Ward Clerk	20.361	20.675	21.144		20.768	21.089	21.567	-
FValu Cicik	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months	Start	3 Months	15 Months	27 Months
X-Ray Assistant	20.183	20.630	21.011	21 Months 21 814	20. 58 6	21.043	21 431	27 MONTHS 22.250

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

- between -

The Riverdale Hospital

- and -

C.U.P.E. Local 79 (Service Unit - Full-time only)

The Hospital agrees to pay seventy-five per cent (75%) of the billed premium on the Supplemental Hospital Contract and the Comprehensive Medical Protection Plan for all eligible employees and retired employees on pension.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

- between -

The Riverdale Hospital

- and -

C.U.P.E. Local 79 (Service Unit - Full- time only)

Re: Scheduling

The parties agree that their representatives shall meet during the term of this Agreement to discuss general scheduling concerns and, more particularly, the possibility of scheduling 50% of weekends off.

VARIABLE WORK HOURS

The parties agree that their representatives shall meet during the term of this Agreement to discuss the feasibility of the implementation of flexible or variable working hours.

CLEAR LANGUAGE AND REFORMATTING OF THE COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT

During the life of this Collective Agreement a Representative of CUPE, Local 79 will meet with the Hospital's Manager, Employee Relations to discuss reformatting the Collective Agreement with a view of bringing ideas forward for discussion in the subsequent negotiations for the renewal of the Collective Agreement.

JOB POSTINGS

The Employer agrees to add the following note to all Job Postings;

Note: Successful employees need not be considered for other vacancies within a six (6) month period unless an opportunity arises which allows the employee to change his/her permanent status (i.e. from part-time status to full-time status or change in job classification).

BRIDGEPOINT HOSPITAL REDEVELOPMENT

The Hospital and the Union have a legitimate interest in discussing and reviewing the possible relocation and/or working conditions of its members during any redevelopment/rebuilding of the Hospital.

Therefore, the Hospital and the Union agree that, should the Hospital rebuild and/or redevelop in a manner that necessitates the movement of full-time or part-time staff, the Hospital will give notice under Article 8.10 to Local 79 to meet with the "Conditions of Work Committee" to discuss and review the plans that may require the movement of Local 79 members and attempt to reach an agreement regarding the planning and implementation of the employee movement. It is understood that the establishment of a Conditions of Work Committee does not prevent the establishment of a Redeployment Committee if such a committee is required under the Collective Agreement.

WORKPLACE RELATIONS POLICY

Within thirty (30) days of the signing of this Collective Agreement, the Hospital and the Union shall meet to jointly review the Hospital's existing Workplace Relations policy that includes a process for investigating and dealing with harassment and discrimination complaints.

Each party shall appoint up to 3 members to attend the meeting.

PROCESS FOR HOLIDAY SCHEDULING (RPNs ONLY):

First, full-time and regular part-time employees scheduled to work the holiday as part of their regular schedule will have the option at the employee's request of working the holiday or receiving the day off. If a full-time employee decides to take the day off the employee will be coded as a statutory holiday with pay (i.e. C-Day).

Second, any remaining shifts on the holiday will be offered to full-time employees within their rotation, by seniority, who are not scheduled to work on the holiday. If a full-time employee decides to work on the holiday then the employee's schedule will be adjusted by the Hospital to provide an alternate day off within the same pay period.

Third, any remaining shifts on the holiday will be offered first to regular part-time employees, by seniority, in accordance with their availability and the collective agreement. If there are remaining shifts on the holiday after all full-time and regular part-time employees have been given the opportunity to work, the shifts will be offered to casual employees, by seniority, in accordance with their availability and the collective agreement.

PERMANENT PART-TIME PILOT/JOB SHARE PROGRAM

The Hospital and the Union have an interest in exploring the possibility of a permanent part-time project/job share program. As a result, the parties agree to meet for a first meeting within thirty (30) days after the date of ratification to discuss the feasibility of a permanent part-time project/job share program agreement.

SKILL MIX INITIATIVE:

The Hospital is committed, as part of the skill mix implementation, to create new unit positions to support the RN / RPN team. The Hospital is further committed to the creation of a resource for constant care / escorts.

The Hospital further agrees that the first phase skill mix implementation time line will not commence any earlier than September 2009.

CHRISTMAS & NEW YEARS SCHEDULING (RPNs ONLY)

The Hospital and the Union agree that the process outlined below shall be used for the purpose of scheduling employees to work the Christmas and New Years period in December 2010 and January 2011.

An employee may file a complaint with their Manager no later than nine (9) calendar days following the posting of the schedule regarding an alleged violation of the process contained in this letter of intent, and the Manager shall immediately inform the Manager, Employee Relations or designate of the complaint. A representative of the Hospital and the Union will meet as soon as possible with the Manager in an attempt to resolve the complaint. If the complaint cannot be resolved the complaint may be filed as a grievance and processed under the Grievance and Arbitration procedure of the Collective Agreement.

(i) Definitions

Christmas period is defined as December 24, 25 and 26

New years period is defined as December 31, January 1, and 2

(ii) Process

Full-time Employees

(a) Initial Request

The Hospital will post a notice on each unit asking employees to indicate their preference to have time off over either the Christmas or New years period. It is understood that the time off over the Christmas or New Years shall be at least four (4) consecutive days that covers the applicable period as defined above. The notice will be posted five (5) weeks prior to the posting of the schedule that will cover the Christmas and New Years period. All employees must indicate their preference by completing the notice at least three (3) weeks prior to the posting of the schedule.

The Manager will grant initial requests based on seniority and the operational requirements of the Unit and initial requests shall be considered before special requests.

(b) Individual Meeting

If an employee's initial request cannot be approved the Manager will meet individually with the employee to advise that his/her request could not be granted and the Manager shall advise the employee of his/her scheduling options over the Christmas and New Years period.

(c) Secondary Requests

In addition, employees may submit a secondary request to their Manager within the same time frame as stated for initial requests to:

- Have time off over both the Christmas and New Years period
- □ Work both the Christmas and New Years period; and

□ To indicate the preferred shift(s) they would like to work over the Christmas and New Years period

The Manager will grant employees secondary requests based on seniority and the operational requirements of the unit after granting initial requests. Secondary requests that are granted may operationally require an adjustment to the employee's six (6) week schedule. It is understood that initial requests granted in (a) will not be altered by the granting of any secondary requests under (c) and secondary requests submitted late will not be considered. If the secondary request cannot be granted the Manager shall notify the employee(s) of such.

Regular Part-time Employees:

The Hospital will post a notice on each unit asking employees to indicate their availability to work Christmas and/or New Years period. Further to Article 15.09(A)(1)(c), it is understood all employees must be available to work both rotations (ie: D/E or D/N) for the entire three (3) consecutive days over the Christmas or New Years period. It is also understood that any employee that does not provide the required availability will be scheduled, if needed, after all employees that provided the required availability.

The notice will be posted five (5) weeks prior to the posting of the schedule that will cover the Christmas and New Years period. All employees must complete the notice at least three (3) weeks prior to the posting of the schedule. The Manager will schedule employees in accordance with the process above, the submitted availability, the Collective Agreement, and the operational requirements of the Unit.

Special Requests:

Regular Part-time Employees may indicate on the notice a preference for shifts over their scheduled Christmas or New Years period, as appropriate. Such requests will only be considered after the Initial and Secondary Requests have been determined for Full-time Employees. The granting of special requests are subject to the operations of the Hospital.

Casual Employees:

The Hospital will post a notice on each unit asking employees to indicate their availability to work the Christmas and/or new Years period. The notice will be posted five (5) weeks prior to the posting of the schedule that will cover the Christmas and New Years period. All employees must complete the notice at least three (3) weeks prior to the posting of the schedule. The Manager will schedule employees in accordance with their submitted availability, the Collective Agreement, and the operational requirements of the Unit.

(iii) Posting of Schedule

The Hospital will post a special six (6) week schedule that covers the Christmas and New Years period by December 1st. It is understood that, subject to staffing requirements, during the period of December 15th to January 15th the provisions of Article 16.07(A)(1)(b) and Letter of Intent Re: Scheduling (weekends off) may be waived.

The following is attached for information purposes only:

Letter of Understanding: Re: Scheduling Pilot Project (Registered Practical Nurses – RPN)

The parties agree to hold Article 16 in abeyance for Employee on Units 6 West and a second unit to be agreed to by the parties pending completion of the following Scheduling Pilot Project. The parties agree that either party may request the assistance of a Mediator/Arbitrator on issues that the parties may not be able to agree on including the implementation of Master Scheduling Hospital wide at the conclusion of the Pilot Project.

The intent of the Scheduling Pilot Project is to monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of the implementation of a Master Schedule for Full and Part-time RPN's. The Hospital and Local 79 will meet at the end of each six (6) week schedule to monitor and review all data collected through the Pilot Project.

The Pilot Project will last for six months, or as mutually agreed by the parties. During the term of the Pilot Project there must be mutual agreement of the parties to terminate the Pilot Project. At the conclusion of the Pilot Project, or at any time prior to the conclusion of the Pilot Project, the parties agree to review the Master Schedule and process and make adjustments prior to implementing the Master Schedule on all other units of the Hospital.

Introduction of the Scheduling Pilot Project – Master Rotations

- Prior to the implementation of the Pilot Project, the Hospital and the Union will hold meetings jointly with the full-time and part-time employees on the Pilot Project units to communicate facts about the Pilot Project.
- The date of implementation of the Pilot Project will be mutual agreement, but at any rate no later than 60 days after ratification of the Collective Agreement.

Scope of the Pilot Project

- To create scheduling stability for both the Hospital and its Employees.
- To allow regular part-time employees to be pre-scheduled twenty-four (24) hours per week, where possible, and the parties agree that this shall not be construed to be a guarantee of hours of work.
- To allow regular part-time employees to be scheduled up to full-time hours per week, subject to availability, prior to scheduling a casual employee more than twenty-four (24) hours per week.
- To monitor the effectiveness of pre-scheduled work for Full-time and Regular Part-time employees.

Process of the Study

 All regular part-time employees on the Pilot Project units will be required to submit a new and accurate availability form prior to the establishment of the Master Schedule, in keeping with the commitment language in the Collective Agreement, including a current phone number (i.e. only one phone number) that the employee would like to be contacted at.

Definitions

"Master Schedule" shall mean a six (6) week reoccurring schedule for Full-time and Regular Part-time Employees.

"Call-in Work" shall mean work which needs to be assigned because of the absence of an employee and is not known at the time the schedule is posted.

"Pre-booked Work" shall mean work assigned to an employee where there is a known absence on the Master Schedule before the posting of a schedule.

"Pre-scheduled Work" shall mean work of the Hospital which is assigned on a reoccurring basis on the Master Schedule (i.e. part of a Master Line) prior to the posting of the schedule.

Implementation of Master Scheduling – Full-time

The Hospital will build a Master Schedule in accordance with the following principles:

- The Master Schedule will be built on a reoccurring six (6) week scheduling period
- The Master Schedule will be built on rotations that best meet the patient care needs on the unit
- The Master Schedule will be built according to the Employee's rotations on the units (i.e. D/E or D/N)
- Each line on the Master Schedule will have a minimum of ten (10) day shifts in the six (6) week scheduling period
- Lines on the Master Schedule will have a minimum of one (1) week block of rotations (i.e. one week of D, E or N shifts) and a maximum of 4 weeks
- Endeavor to build lines on the Master Schedule that allow for a maximum of 4 shifts in a
- Lines will be built on the Master Schedule in accordance with the Letter of Understanding B Re: Scheduling (Full-time only) with respect to weekends off

Once the Master Schedule is built, Full-time Employees, in descending order of seniority, will select a line in accordance with the Employee's rotation. The Hospital and the Union will work collaboratively through out the selection process.

Implementation of Master Scheduling – Regular Part-time

- The Master Schedule will be built on a reoccurring six (6) week scheduling period
- The Master Schedule will be built on rotations that best meet the patient care needs on the unit
- After all Full-time employees have chosen their line, the Hospital will use all of the remaining pre-scheduled shifts to build "template" lines for the Regular Part-time employees on the unit and, it is understood, that the template lines will be built in accordance with the Collective Agreement

- It is understood that a Regular Part-time employee may adjust a template line to meet his/her needs so long as the adjustment is agreed upon by the Hospital and the Union
- Additional availability may be provided by a Regular Part-time employee for call-in shifts and pre-booked shifts
- Call-in and pre-booked shifts will be distributed to employees in accordance with the Collective Agreement and an employee's availability

Once the template lines have been built on the Master Schedule, Regular Part-time Employees, in descending order of seniority, will select a line in accordance with the Employee's rotation. The Hospital and the Union will work collaboratively through out the selection process.

Note: Casual employees will not be assigned a line on the Master Schedule.

Note: This Letter of Understanding does not form part of the Collective Agreement.

PART-TIME PILOT PROJECT – OFFERING ADDITIONAL SHIFTS (Food Services)

The parties agree to the following in regards to offering additional shifts in the Food Services department subject to agreement to review six (6) months following the implementation date and subject to the terms listed below.

- When a shift becomes available after the schedule has been posted such shift will be offered to part-time employees who have not been scheduled up to twenty-four (24) hours per week in accordance with 16.07 (B) (1), in order of seniority.
- A shift not filled in accordance with the above will next be offered to casual employees in accordance with 16.07 (B) (1).
- A shift that remains unfilled after following the above procedure will be offered to parttime employees who have indicated availability in order of seniority. It is understood that where there is a break between shifts a requirement to pay overtime will not be triggered unless the bi-weekly threshold of seventy-five (75) hours is exceeded.
- Additional shifts will be offered on condition that the employee works his/her originally scheduled shift(s).

The parties agree that this Memorandum of Agreement may be terminated by either party with ninety (90) days written notice to the other party.

Clarity Note: It is understood that any shifts accepted by an employee under this pilot is not in substitution of any of his/her scheduled shifts.

RE: LOCAL HEALTH INTEGRATION NETWORKS

The parties agree that any LHIN initiative that will have a direct impact on the members of the bargaining unit may be raised through the Fiscal Advisory Committee, in accordance with Article 24.

The Union will be provided with any pertinent financial and staffing information as required under Article 24.

RE: CLARITY AND HOUSEKEEPING

For changes to the 2009 – 2013 Collective Agreement identified in the Memorandum of Settlement dated July 15, 2011 as "Housekeeping" or "Clarity", it is not the intent of either Local 79 or Bridgepoint Hospital to change the meaning or intent of the predecessor language. If a grievance is filed during the term of the 2009 – 2013 Collective Agreement related to a change identified in the Memorandum of Settlement dated July 15, 2011 as "Housekeeping" or "Clarity" either party may refer to the relevant clause of 2007 – 2009 Collective Agreement to make argument during the grievance and arbitration procedure.

RE: ALTERNATE UNIT AND/OR FLOAT POOL (RPNs):

Within 30 days of ratification the parties shall convene an ad-hoc committee to review the feasibility of adopting an Alternate Unit and/or Float Pool process(es) allowing regular part-time RPNs to provide availability to Units other than their home unit and to discuss the process for the distribution of additional shifts taking into account the Alternate Unit and/or Float Pool process. Such discussions shall include the feasibility of casual RPNs participating in an Alternate Unit and/or Float Pool process.

In light of the agreements existing between CUPE and the Hospital, the ad-hoc committee will be one joint committee representing employees in the Nursing & Paramedical bargaining unit and RPNs in the Service bargaining unit.

The Committee shall be comprised of equal numbers of representatives of the Hospital and the Union. The composition of the committee shall include two (2) Members from the Service bargaining unit appointed by the Union.

The Committee shall meet at least once a month for a period of twelve (12) months from the commencement of the first committee meeting at a mutually agreeable time and place. By mutual agreement the parties may extend the life of the committee.

At the conclusion of twelve months, or any agreed to extension, should the parties reach agreement on processes and or language on Alternate Unit and/or Float Pool the Committee may recommend implementation by the Hospital on a trial basis.

PART-TIME PILOT PROJECT - TEMPORARY VACANCIES:

The parties agree to the following in regards to temporary vacancies in the Environmental Services, Food Services and Materials Management departments subject to the terms listed below.

Filling Temporary Vacancies

- A temporary vacancy for the purpose of this Pilot Project shall be defined as a vacancy
 of two (2) weeks or more. A temporary vacancy of up to six (6) months shall not be
 posted. Written notice of the vacancy shall be displayed within the applicable department
 for a period of seven (7) days.
- The Employer shall first offer the temporary vacancy to the senior full-time employee (only if there is a wage differential); secondly to the senior regular part-time employee (only if the vacancy represents an increase in the number of hours worked); and thirdly to the senior casual employee. Selection of the senior employee in each case shall be subject to being able to meet the normal requirements of the job.
- Once the employee has started a temporary vacancy, the employee will be expected to complete the temporary assignment before he or she may accept another temporary vacancy. It is understood that if the new temporary vacancy allows the employee to move from a temporary part-time vacancy to a temporary full-time vacancy, then the expectation to complete the temporary assignment will not apply.
- For clarity, vacancies which represent a change of schedule or rotation only, shall not be
 considered under the terms of this memorandum. Exception will be permitted for full-time
 temporary vacancies in excess of six (6) weeks' duration, in which case a change of shift
 rotation (AM/PM) or change to a shift with a start time different by two (2) hours or more
 from the employee's current start time will be considered. Such exceptions shall not be
 unreasonably denied.

The parties agree that this Memorandum of Agreement may be terminated by either party with ninety (90) days written notice to the other party.

WORK-LOAD REVIEW FORM

The parties agree that patient care is enhanced if concerns relating to professional practice, patient acuity, fluctuating Work-Loads and fluctuating staffing are resolved in a timely manner. Any **RPN** wishing to raise a complaint with respect to the appropriateness of the number of patients assigned to them or their workload shall raise their concern(s) under Section 6: Workload Review Form.

Workload Review Form

- a) RPN's or groups of RPN's shall first raise their workload concern(s) to their immediate supervisor.
- b) In the event that the workload concern(s) is not resolved to the employee(s)' satisfaction, the RPN or group of RPN's, may submit their concerns to the Joint Professional Committee using the "Workload Review Form" and will provide a copy of the completed form to each of the Employer and Union Co-Chairs of the Committee. Such form must be submitted within 10 days of the incident.

SECTION 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION (PLEASE PRINT)					
Location/Unit					
Names of employee(s) reporting					
Date of Occurrence Shift D / E / N Time:					
Name of supervisor first contacted about the incident, and when					
SECTION 2 – DETAILS OF OCCURRENCE					
Provide a concise summary of the occurrence					
Is this an isolated incident? ☐ or, an on-going problem? ☐					
Has it been reported before? Yes □ No □					

WORK-LOAD REVIEW FORM

SECTION 3 - WORKING CONDITIONS						
Please provide details about the working conditions at the time of the occurrence by providing the following information:						
Actual staffing – RNs #		Normal staffing – RNs #				
Actual staffing – RPNs #	-	Normal staffing – RPNs #				
Actual staffing – USTs #		Normal staffing – USTs #				
Actual staffing - Allied #	(specify)	Normal staffing – Allied #	(specify)			
Float Pool – RNs #						
Float Pool – RPNs #						
Float Pool – UST #						
Central Therapy – Allied #						
RNs working overtime #						
RPNs working overtime #						
Other staff (PCA, agency) # Admin/Unit Clerk? Yes □ No □						
If there was a shortage of staff at the time of the occurrence please check the applicable box(es).						
☐Leave / Vacation ☐ Sick	call (s) 🔲 Vacan	cies				
SECTION 4 – PATIENT CARE FACTORS CONTRIBUTING TO THE OCCURRENCE						
SECTION 4 – PATIENT CARE FACTO	RS CONTRIBUTING TO	THE OCCURRENCE				
SECTION 4 – PATIENT CARE FACTOR Actual census #						
Actual census #	Patients on pass #		evant:			
Actual census #	Patients on pass #		vant:			
Actual census # Please provide details about patient care fac	Patients on pass #		vant:			
Actual census # Please provide details about patient care fac	Patients on pass #		vant:			
Actual census # Please provide details about patient care factors Change in patient acuity Number of admissions	Patients on pass #		vant:			
Actual census # Please provide details about patient care factors Change in patient acuity Number of admissions Visitors/family members	Patients on pass #		evant:			

WORK-LOAD REVIEW FORM

SECTION 5 - NOTIFICATION	OKW.				
At the time of the occurrence, did you seek assistance from the immediate supervisor? Yes \(\Bar{\cup} \) No \(\Bar{\cup} \)					
Please provide details					
Did you discuss the occurrence with your Patient Care Manager? Yes ☐ No ☐					
If ,"Yes", when? Please provide details.					
SECTION 6 - RECOMMENDATION					
Please check off and/or comment on any area(s) you feel should be addressed i	n order to prevent similar occurrences:				
☐ In-service training/orientation					
☐ Additional training					
☐ Review staffing/patient ratio					
☐ Review procedure for replacing staff					
☐ Health & Safety					
□Equipment					
□Other)specify)					

WORK-LOAD REVIEW FORM

SECTION 7 ~ MANAGEMENT COMMENTS					
Please provide any information/comments in response to this report, including any actions taken to remedy the situation, where applicable. Such form must be submitted within ten (10) days of the incident. The Manager will return the form in reasonable time in order to be submitted by the employee within the ten (10) days.					
Management Signature	Date				
SECTION 8 ~ EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE(S)					
	dressed. We are submitting this information to the Co-Chairs of o bring any issue forward again should there be a re-occurrence.				
Signed:	Date:				
Signed:	Date:				
Signed:					
Signed:					
	OR				
B. I/we do not believe the response adequately addresses the Joint Professional Committee in accordance with the	my/our concerns. I/we request these concerns be forwarded to e Collective Agreement.				
Signed:	_ Date:				
Signed:					
Signed:	Date:				
oignou.					